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Yola Sub-County Hospitol (Siayu County Government)
Annual Report ancl Finoncitl Statements for The Year Ended 3Uh June 2023

l. Acronyms & Glossary of Terms

Provide a list o/ all acronyms and glossary of terms used in the preparation of this report e.g.

CSR Corporate Social Responsibility

OSHA Occupational Health & Safety Act

PFMA Public Financial Management Act

MED SUP Medical Superintendellt

I"iduciary Management Key managernent personnel who have f,rnancial responsibility in the

entity.

(This list is an indication o/lhe conrnon acronyms and glossarl, oJ lerms; the entity should include allfrom the annual report
and financ ial statements prepared)

?
J

la

I

ll

-a



a

ical Superintendent Dr Bruno Okall-I

ad of f'rnance Kennedy Ooko-2

Eunice Ombogo-.,

charge Pharmacy Dr Nympah Maende-4 I

\ I Charge Laboratory Daniel Ovoo

a Yttlo Sub-
Annual R

unty Hospitol (Siayo Counly Governmenl)
rt and Financiol Slotements for The Yeor Ended 3At' June 2023

.,
Key Entity Information and Management

Yala Sub-County Hospital is a level (4) hospital established under gazette notice number 87

and is domiciled in Siaya County under the Health Department. The hospital is governed by
a Board of Management.

(b) Principal Activities

The principal activity/mission/ mandate of the hospital is to . . .

(Under this section you may also include the entity's vision, mission and core objectives)

(c) Key Management

The hospital'.r management is under the following key organs
- County department of health
- Board of Management
- Accounting Otlicer/ Medical Superintendent
- Management
- Others (speci./y)

(d) duciary Management

e key management personnel who held office during the financial year ended 30'h June

023 and who had direct tlduciary responsibility were

(lnclude al positions regurdecl us' lop mqnagemenl in your hospital)

(e) F uciary Oversight Arrangeme nts

Clinical Research and Standards Committee
Audit committee
Risk Committee
County Assembly
Parliamentary committees
Other oversight committees

lll

(a) | Background information

fipre, provide u hig,h-level description of the key /iduciary oversight arrangements
colering (suyJ)

I

No. Designation Namc

Hpad of supply chain



)Yala Sub-County Hospital (Sioya County Government)
Annuol Reporl and Financial Stilements fur The Yeur Encled 3Uh June 2023

lr

Ke1 Iintity' Information and Management (continued)

(0 Entity'Headquartcrs

P.O. Box 803-40600
SIAYA.

(g) Entity Contacts

Telephone: (+254) 079 I 68690
Email.yalaleveliv@smai l.com
Website:wwwyalaleveliv. go.ke

(h) Entity Bankers

Cooperative Bank-Yala

Independent Auditors(i)

Auditor General
Office of Auditor General
Anniversary Towers. Institute Way
P.O. Box 30084
GPO 00100
Nairobi, Kenya

(j) Principal Legal Adviser

The Attomey General
State Law Otlice
Harambee Avenue
P.O. Box 401 12

City Square 00200
Nairobi, Kenya

(k) County Attornel'

P.O. Box. 803-40600

I

tv



Sub Hospitol (Saiyo Co unty Governmenl)
nuol R and Financiol Slolemenls r The Yeor Ended 3Ah June 2023



Yalo Sub Counly Hospital (Soiya Counly Government)
Annual Report and Financiol Statementsfor The Yeor Ended 3Oh June 2023

3. Thc Board of Management

No Board at the time

Director I

(lnserl each Direclor's passport-size pholo

and name, and key profession/academic

qualifications)

I

2 Director 2 No Board at the time

3 Director 3 No Board at the time

Director 4/Alternate No Board at the time4

Dr. Bruno Okall) MED SUP

6 Entity Secretary
No Board at the time

vl

Directors



!ah Sub Co nty Hospitol (Soiyo CountS' Government)
Annual Rep snd Finoncial Slatementsfor The Year Ended 3Ah June 2023

1 ey Management Tcam

Medical Superintendent

Hospital Administrator

Hospital Accountant

Hospital Pharmacist

Hospital Nursing Services

Manager

up and the Entity Secretary u,ill ./bature both under the 'Board' and 'Management'.)

I

l) Bruno Ambere Okall

M dical Doctor

Bernard OrnondiM

2

,

,I

I

Mr Kennedy Otieno Ooko

[impha Nabwire Maende
I

Dr

ota' 'l'he Med

vll

Ret Management

U

I
7

L.-. l
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Yoln Sub County Hospital (Soiyo County Government)
Annuol Reporl ond Finoncinl Stilemenlsfor The Yeor Ended 3Ah June 2023

)

5. C'hairman's Statemcnt

One - two pages

(Under thi.s section, the Chairman o/ the Board of Management will give a brieJ highlight o/ the

kclt ac1i1,i1irt during lhe year, succe.\se.t consolidaled, challenges beingfaced, and the way.fbrward

or.future outlook./br the hospital). (The report should be signed by the chairman o/ the governing

body.)

Thcre was no Board of managcment

Name

Chairman to the Board

o

)

\/lll
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Report of The Medical Superintendent

to present the Hospital's annual report and financial statements for the year 2022123. The
lights the hospitals operational and financial performance as well as our strategic direction

I Pcrformancc
provides specialized healthcare services. To meet our patients' needs, we have specialists in

es of medical practice who ensure our customers receive safe, timely, equitable, efficient.
d patient-centred services. During the year, the surgical team successfully reattached severed

ed a dagger that was lodged in thejaw ofa patient and demonstrated clinical effectiveness by
mortality rate at the critical care units.

ty
barked on all aspects of patient safety which is an integral component of health service

CH is tbcused to reduce hospital acquired infections and medical errors, reduction of falls and

f venous thrombosis. The Hospital has created the department of Quality Healthcare (QHC)
tions encompass patient safety, clinical governance, infection prevention & control, as well as

and evaluation. The hospital also developed protocols SOPs and guidelines for patient

mmunication
ing great emphasis in irnprovement of communication with our patients, their families another
in an efl'ective and timely manner. To this end, we have continued to train our employees on

and eff'ective communication while upholding the highest standards of care. In an etf ort to
y and accurate inlbrmation, we have established mechanisms for receiving and resolving
back in line with our motto: We Listen, We care. Further, we have strengthened customer

d process improvement with a view to enhance patients-care giver engagement. The current
sfaction index stand t74Yo

ent
of pati nt to the care, love and support offered everyday by thec

mnl l

F

ful to our stakeholders and sponsors for their kindness.
to YSCH

M.
l)r. Bruno

Secreta ry to

m o
the I]o

a

Yalo Subpounty Hospilal (Soiya Counly Government)

are

$
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Yolo Sub County Hospitnl (Soiyu County Governmenl)
Annual Report ond Finoncisl Stilementsfor The Yeor Entled 3Uh June 2023

7. Statement of Pcrformance Against Predetermined Objectives

)'.SCHhas 6 strategic pillars/ themes/issues and objectives within the current Strategic Plan fbr the

FY 2022- FY 2023. These strategic pillars/ themes/ issues are as follows:

Pillar /theme/issue 1: Leadership and governance

Pillar/theme/issue 2: Service delivery

Pillar /theme/issue 3: Health systen.r financing

Pillar /theme/issue 4: Health workforce

Pillar /theme/issue 5: Medical products, vaccines and technologies

Pillar /theme/issue 6: Health infonnation systems

l2 workload

reports

submitted

x

Pillar /theme/issue 1

Leadership and

governance

To maintain

propel'

governance

of the

hospital

Governance

reports

submitted

Promote good

governance

l2 reports

submitted

Pillar/theme/issue 2

Service delivery

To improve

servlcc

delivery

Facility

workload report

Promote the use

of the facility

Pillar /theme/issue 3

Health system

financing

l'o avail

adequate

tlnances

Submitted

financial reports

Prudently

manage finances

1 2 financial

reports

submitted

)'SCH develops its annual work plans based on the above 6 pillars/Themes/Issues. Assessment of

the Board's perfbrmance against its annual work plan is done on a quarterly basis. The I^SCH did

not achieved its perfbrmance targets set fbr the FY 2022/2023 period for its 6 strategic pillars, as

indicated in the diagram below:

(NI]. Etttitie.v uttt l)rcl)urc thi.s 1t(!1'/i1rn1u nt'c itrlitrnalion as per the table below or in u more relewtnt
lbrnrut .sttiIultlr,./itr tItr. tttttrrt t: tt/ it.:' ut'tiritit,s)

Strategic
Pillar/Theme/Issues

Objective

I

Key
Performance
lndicators

Activities Achievements



Yolo Sub
Annuol Re

nty Hospitol (Stiya Counllt Government)
rt antl Financiol Stolements for The Yeor Ended 3At' June 2023

To avail

adequate

workforce as

per the norms

Submitted staff

retums

Mange health

workforce

l2 staff return

submitted::11'"1"1"::'-

4 drawing rights

submitted

To avail

adequate

medical

products.

vaccines and

technologies

Consumption

repons

submitted

Procure and use

health products

eme/issue 5

products,

and

gies

Pill

techn

Medi

vacci

AvaillT

equipment's

8 departments

adopted the use

of IT

Level of

adoption of IT

To promote

the use of

Health

infbrmation

and

technologies

Pillar me/issue 6

ntbrmationIlealth

system

(Under I 's section lhere.fbre, lhe managemcnt should include performance againsl the,strategit
objective of the org,anisation. The managemenl .should outline the strategic Pillars, activities
towards t ir achievemertl and outputs under each stralegic pillar. The organisation should al.stt

brie/ly ou ine hov, lhey have tied achicvements to performance contracts)

xl



Yala Sub County Hospitol (Saiyo County Governmenl)
Annual Report ontl Financiol Slotements for The Yeor Ended 3Ah June 2023

8, Corporate(]overnanceStatement

J'here was no board of management at the time

xll



a
lalo Suh unty Hospitol (Saiya County Government)

and Financiol Statemenlsfor The Year Ended 3Oh June 2023

9 anagement Discussion and Analysis

Clini Perform ance

YSC continues to provide a wide range of highly specialized healthcare services to Kenyans.
patlen from within Gem and westem region. Specialized services include, specialized outpatient

inpatient care, day care procedures for surgery, ENT, ophthalmology, dental amongst other
servlc and specialized accident and emergency that receives emergency, disaster victims and

patients. The hospital also provides clinical support services that include laboratory,
y and radiology.

refe

clinics

pharm

emerg ies. The hospital patient attendance continues to increase despite the many challenges i.e

budget constraints and frequent industrial actions

Financi performa n ce

pital strives to ensure that the clinical services provided are safe, timely, appropriate,
e, efl'ective. evidence-based and in line with modem technological advances. Clinical
e continues to be strengthened to improve patient safety and gnsure quality healthcare

on, the hospital plays a leading role nationally in the manage ment of disasters and

I has seen a growth in revenue trends over the past periods. During the year, the facility
I of Kshs.48, 135,839.00 as revenue and brought forward of Kshs. 8,217,063.00. A
s.41,979,754.00 was incurred as expenditure. During the period, the hospital accrued

a total of hs. 8 0.as pending bills

$

The ho
innovat
govem
In add

The hos
raised a
total of

tan'to

W s"
s\N c

o
e

x l

Annual Rep$rt

Board
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l
Yolo Sub County Hospitol (Soiyt County Government)
Annuol Reporl ond Finonciol Slotements for The Year Ended 3(lh June 2023

i) Sustainability strotegy ortd profile

Include an Inlroduclory puragraph on the main mandate of the organization and its slrcttegy on

sustainabilily. Sustainabilitl, being thc ability to maintain or continue o.ffering services to the

citizens o/ lhe counlry over the long- lerm. The top management especially the accounting o.//icer

should refbr to su:;lainable e//orts, broad trends in political and macroeconomic a//bcting

sustainability priorities, referencc to inlernalionctl best practices and key achieyemenls and./ailurc.

i i) E nviro nme ntal pe rfo r mance

Outline clecu'ly, environmentul policy guiding the organisalion, provide evidence oJ' the policy.

Outline succes,res, shortcomings, ef/itrts lo manage biodiversity, wasle management policy and

effort.s to reduce environmentql impacl o./ lhe organisctlion's products.

iii) Employee $,efiare

Git,e accounl o/ the policie.t guiding the hiring process and whelher they take into account the

gender ralio, whether lhey take in stakeholder engagements and how often they are improved.

Explain e/fort.r made in improving ,skills and managing careers, appraisal and reward system:;. Thc

organisalion should ulso di.sclosa lheir policy on safety and compliance with Occupational Sc(bty

und Llealth Acr ol 2007, (OSHA.)

iv) Morkel place practices-

The organisalion .yhould outline ils e//brts to:

a) Responsible competilion practice.

Explain hou, lhe orgunisation cnsures responsible competition practices with issues lika

anli-corrupl ion, responsible political involvement, fair competition, and respect ./br

compel ilors.

b) Responsible Supply choin und supplier relations

Explain how the orgonisulion mainlains good business practices, and treats its ov,n

suppliers resytn.tibly by horuturing contract.\ and respecting payment practices.

c) Respottsible morketing and advertisemenl

xlv

10. Environmcntal And Sustainability Reporting



Suh
ttuul R
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tline effbrts to mainlain ethical marketing practices.

uct stewordship

ine effitrts to safeguard consumer righls and interests

Soc ial Res po n s i b i I ity / Co mm u n ily En gage ments

tion gives details o./ CSR activilies carried oul in the year and the impact lo lhe society.

of community engagement including charitable giving (cash and material), Corporale

ent and other /brms of community engagemenls.Social

v) Co

The o

Give evi

xv



Yulu Sub County Hospital (Soiya County Government)

Annual Repo rt ontl Finortcial Statemenls for Tlte Year Ended 3Ah June 2023

I l. Report of The Board of Management

There was no board at the time

tr
Name

Secretary to the Board

17 o he signed b.t, the Secretarv o.f the Bourd)

xvl

6",'
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REPUBLIC OF KENYA

HEADOUARTERS
Anniversary Towers

Monrovia Street
P.O. Box 3oo84-ooroo

NAIROBI

REP
THE

on

gut

man
thos
entit

An unm
relevant
governa

A ort on the Financial Statements that considers whether the financial statementsRe
a fairly presented in accordance with the applicable financial reporting framework,
a unting standards and the relevant laws and regulations that have a direct effect

e financial statements.

B. Re rt on LaMulness and Effectiveness in Use of Public Resources which considers
co liance with applicable laws, regulations, policies, gazette notices, circulars,

lines and manuals and whether public resources are applied in a prudent,
effi nt, economic, transparent and accountable manner to ensure Government
ach es value for money and that such funds are applied for the intended purpose

C. Re rt on Effectiveness of lnternal Controls, Risk Management and Governance
whic considers how the entity has instituted checks and balances to guide internal

tions. This responds to the effectiveness of the governance structure, the risk
gement environment and the internal controls, developed and implemented by
charged with governance for orderly, efficient and effective operations of the

ope

ified opinion does not necessarily mean that an entity has complied with all

T OF THE AUDITOR.GENERAL ON YALA SUB-COUNry HOSPITAL FOR
AR ENDED 30 JUNE, 2023 - COUNTY GOVERNMENT OF SIAYA

aws and regulations and that its internal controls, risk management and
systems are properly designed and were working effectively in the financial

year und r revrew

The thre parts of the report are aimed at addressing the statutory roles and
responsib ities of the Auditor-General as provided by Article 229 of the Constitution, the
Public Fin nce Management Act, 2012 and the Public Audit Act, 2015. The three parts of
the report when read together constitute the report of the Auditor-General

REPORT N THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Qualified pinion

I have au ed the accompanying financial statements of Yala Sub-County Hospital -

County G rnment of Siaya set out on pages 1 to 55, which comprise of the statement

1 Report of the

I ofSiaya
ditor-General on Yala Sub-County Hospital for the year ended 30 June, 2023 - County Government

OFFICE OF THE AUDITOR-GENERAI

l. lt.ut, ittg l, I tt nt,tltilitr

PREAl'BLE

t Ora,lrlyour attention to the contents of my report which is in three parts:



of financial position as at 30 June, 2023, and the statement of financial performance,
statement of changes in net assets, statement of cash flows and statement of comparisoa
of budget and actual amounts for the year then ended, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information in accordance with the provisions
of Article 229 of lhe Constitution of Kenya and Section 35 of the Public Audit Act, 2015. I

have obtained all the information and explanations which, to the best of my knowledge
and belief, were necessary for the purpose of the audit.

ln my opinion, except for effect of the matters described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion
section of my report, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of the Yala Sub-County Hospital - County Government of Siaya as at
30 June, 2023, and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended,
in accordance with lnternational Public Sector Accounting Standards (Accrual Basis) and
comply with the Health Acl, 2017 , the County Governments Act, 2012 and the Public
Financial Managemenl Act, 2012.

Basis for Qualified Opinion

1.0 lnaccuracies in the Financia! Statements

1.1. Statement of Financia! Position

The statement of financial position reflects a Nil balance in respect of net assets which is
at variance with the recalculated amount of Kshs.12,846,526. Further, the statement
reflects total net assets and liabilities balance of Kshs.12,846,526 which is at variance
with the recalculated balance of Kshs.2,563,523 resulting to an unexplained variance of
Kshs.10,283,003.

1.2. Statementof Changes in NetAssets

The statement of changes in net assets reflects balance of Kshs.8,217,063 in respect of
revaluation reserve which was not reflected in the statement of financial position. Further,
supporting documents including the revaluation report detailing the effective date of the
revaluation and the revaluation surplus were not provided for audit. ln addition, the
statement reflects Nil balance in respect of accumulated surplus as at 30 June, 2023.
However, recast of the statement confirms accumulated surplus amount of
Kshs.2,563,523 resulting to an unexplained variance of Kshs.2,563,523.

1.3. Statementof Cash Flows

The statement of cash flows reflects Kshs.8,217,063 in respect of cash and cash
equivalents as at 30 June, 2023. However, recast of the statements revealed cash and
cash equivalent as at 30 June, 2023 of Kshs.11,473,678 resulting to an unexplained
variance of Kshs.3,256,61 5.

ln the circumstances, the accuracy and completeness of the financial statements as
presented could not be confirmed.

Report of the Auditor-General on Yala Sub-County Hospital for the year ended 30 June, 2023 - County Government
ofSiaya
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-Th

2.0 evenue from Exchange Transactions

statement of financial performance reflects revenue from exchange transactions
unt of Kshs.32,630,725 as disclosed in Note 11 to the financial statements. However,am

the llowing anomalies were noted;o

2.1. Unsupported Revenue from Exchange Transactions

SE

pts generated from the system to support revenue collected from rendering of
ce.

re

The
lmp

lnt
Ksh

The
Ksh

rem
gen

revenue from exchange transactions amount includes rendering of service - Facility
vement Funds of Kshs.17,223,105. However, Management did not retain copies of

e circumstances, the accuracy and completeness of the revenue amount of
.17 ,223,105 included in the financial statements could not be confirmed.

statement of financial performance reflects general expenses amounting to
13,658,231 as disclosed in Note 21 to the financial statements. lncluded in the

ined unpaid during the period under review resulting to an overstatement of the
I expenses by the same amount. Further, Management did not maintain creditors

r and an ageing analysis to assess the status of outstanding bills owed to the
ors and the duration they had remained outstanding was not provided for audit

circumstances, the accuracy and completeness of the general expenses balance
s.13,658,231 could not be confirmed.

2.2. Variances in Revenue from Rendering Services

lncl ed in the amount of Kshs.32,630,725 is the National Health lnsurance Fund
ret ursement of Kshs.15,407,620. However, the National Health lnsurance Fund
rec s revealed an amount of Kshs.8,117,890 was paid to the hospital resulting to an
une plained variance of Kshs.7,289,730

ln th circumstances, the accuracy and completeness of revenue from rendering services
ofK hs.32,630,725 could not be confirmed

3.0 nsupported General Expenses

exp diture is other creditor amount of Kshs.8,100,282 which includes Kshs.4,171,384
tnr pect to outstanding expenses incurred in the financial year 202112022 but which

ledg
cred

ln th
of

The
bala
amo

tatement of financial position reflects receivables from exchange transactions
ce of Kshs.8,153,020 as disclosed in Note 28 to the financial statements. The
nt relates to dues from the National Health lnsurance Fund (NHIF) whose records

indi te a balance of Kshs.15,378,077 resulting to an unexplained variance of
Ksh 7,225,057. Further, the amount has been outstanding for more than twelve (12)

R"p of the Auditor-General on Yala Sub-County Hospital for the year ended 30 June, 202j - County Government
ofSi

3

4.0 {ariances in Receivables from Exchange Transactions



months while the contract between the Hospital and NHIF indicates the period to pay
genuine claims is within thirty (30) days of submission.

ln the circumstances, the accuracy, completeness and recoverability of the receivables
from exchange transactions balance of Kshs.8,153,020 could not be confirmed.

5.0 Non-Disclosure of Property, Plant and Equipment

The statement of financial position reflects a Nil property, plant and equipment balance.
However, review of Hospital records and physical verification revealed various assets
including land, buildings, Civil works, motor vehicles, furniture, computers and equipment
which were not disclosed in the financial statements. Further, the ownership documents
for land were not provided for audit.

ln the circumstances, the accuracy, completeness and ownership of the Nil property, plant
and equipment balance could not be confirmed.

6.0 Variances in Trade and Other Payables

The statement of financial position reflects the trade and other payables balance of
Kshs.8,100,282 as disclosed in Note 34 to the financial statements. The balance excludes
Kshs.71,532.90 owed to Kenya Medical Supplies Authority (KEMSA) as per KEMSA
records understating trade and other payables balance.

ln the circumstances, the accuracy, and completeness of the trade payable balance of
Kshs.8,100,282 could not be confirmed.

The audit was conducted in accordance with lnternational Standards of Supreme Audit
lnstitutions (lSSA|s). I am independent of the Yala Sub-County Hospital Management in
accordance with ISSAI 130 on the Code of Ethics. lhave fulfilled other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the ISSAI and in accordance with other ethical
requirements applicable to performing audits of financial statements in Kenya. I believe
that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
my qualified opinion.

Emphasis of Matter

Budgetary Control and Performance

The statement of comparison of budget and actual amounts reflects final revenue budget
and actual on comparable basis of Kshs.51,667,500 and Kshs.44,473,513 respectively
resulting to an under-funding of Kshs.7,193,987 or 14o/o of the budget. However, the
Hospital spent Kshs.41,909,990 against actual receipts of Kshs.44,473,513 resulting to
underutilization of Kshs.2,563,523 or 6% of actual receipts.

Further, the statement of comparison of budget and actual amounts reflects an amount
of Kshs.51,667,500 and Kshs.59,765,030 in respect to budgeted receipts and
expenditure respectively. This resulted to overbudgeting of expenditures by
Kshs.8,097,530.

Report of the Auditor-General on Yala Sub-County Hospitalfor the year ended 30 June, 202j - County Government
of Siayo
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Ke Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in my professional judgment, are of most
srgn cance in the audit of the financial statements. There were no key audit matters to
repo in the year under review

REP
RES

Con

Asr

RT ON LAWFULNESS AND EFFECTIVENESS IN USE OF PUBLIC
URCES

usron

uired by Article 229(6) of the Constitution, based on the procedures performed,
exce for the matters described in the Basis for Conclusion on Lawfulness and
Effe veness in Use of Public Resources and Basis for Qualified Opinion sections of my
repo I confirm that, nothing else has come to my attention to cause me to believe that
public resources have not been applied laMully and in an effective way

Basis or Conclusion

1.0 n-Compliance with the Financial Reporting Framework Template
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Th{ under-funding and under-utilization affected the planned activities and may have
impfcted negatively on service delivery to the public.

I

My fpinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Reviev{ of the annual report and financial statements submitted for audit revealed that the
financi{l statements did not comply with the financial reporting format issued by the Public
SectorlAccounting Standards Board. This is contrary to Section 81(3) of the Public
Financ| Managemenl Acl,2012 which states that the accounting officer shall prepare the
financi{l statements in a form that complies with the relevant accounting standards
prescri$ed and published by the Public Sector Accounting Standards Board.

I

ln the cfcumstances, Management was in breach of the law.
I

2.0 Enfptoyee Costs
I

The stltement of financial performance reflects employee costs amount of
Kshs.8,q45,529 as disclosed in Note 16 to the financial statements. Review of supporting
documelts revealed the following unsatisfactory matters:

2.1. trrdutar Engagement and Payment of Casual Employees
I

The stat{ment of financial performance reflects casuals and contractual staff amount of
Kshs.6,500,00 as disclosed in Note 7 to the financial statements. lt was noted that
Managenlrent engaged casual workers for more than three months. This was contrary to
the Counfy Public Service Human Resource Manual, May 2013 Section 8.16(1) which
states th{t Casual workers shall be engaged only on urgent short-term tasks with the

I



approval of the County Public Service Board and they shall not be engaged for more than
three months, as stipulated in the Employment Act, 2007.

ln the circumstances, Management was in breach of the law.

2.2. Failure to Remit Statutory Deductions

Analysis of the payroll data provided for audit for the month of April, 2022 revealed that
the Hospital Management failed to remit NHIF statutory dues amounting to Kshs.30,400.
Further, no evidence was provided for audit to show that the deductions were remitted to
relevant authorities thus incurring an extra cost of Kshs.45,000 inform of penalty. This
was in contravention of Section 18(1) of the NHIF Fund of 1998.

2.3. Non-Disclosure of Employee Costs Paid by the County Government

The employee costs of Kshs.8,945,529 relates to expenditure on casuals and contractual
staff as disclosed in Note 16 to the financial statements. The Hospital received services
from sixty-one (61) medical staff employed and paid by the county. However, the
expenditure was not disclosed in the financial statements and the payroll was not
provided for audit verification.

ln the circumstances, the accuracy and completeness of employee costs of
Kshs.8,945,529 could not be confirmed.

3.0 Deficiencies in lmplementation of Universal Health Coverage (UHC)

Review of Hospital records and interviews on verification of services offered, equipment
used and medical specialists in the Hospital at the time of audit revealed that the Hospital
did not meet the requirements of Kenya Quality Model for Health Policy Guidelines due
to staff deficits by sixty-six (66) staff requirements or 65% of the authorized establishment.

Report of the Audilor-General on Yola Sub-County Hospitalfor the yeor ended 30 June, 2023 - County Government
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Staff Requirements
Level4

Standard
Number in
Hospital Variance

Percentage
Yo

MedicalOfficers 16 3 13 81.25

Anesthesiologists/ Anesthetist 2 2 0

2 1 50

1 1 50

Pediatrics 2 2 100

2 1 1 50

Registered Community Health
Nurses

27 48 64

Total 1 0 1 35 66 65

ln the circumstances, Management was in breach of the law.

0

General Surgeons I

Gynecologists 2

0

Radiologist

75



ln
He th Policy Guidelines as detailed below

dition, the Hospital lacked the necessary equipment and machines outlined in the

These eficiencies contravene the First Schedule of the Health AcL,2017 and imply that
acces ng the highest attainable standard of health, which includes the right to health
CATC S rvices, including reproductive health care as required by Article 43(1) of the
Constit ion of Kenya ,2010 may not be achieved

ln the rcumstances, the Hospital will not be able to deliver on its mandate

4.0 Ir ular Procurement of Fuel, Oil and Lubricants

Note 21

lubrican Review of payment vouchers revealed that the Hospital Management procured
fuel fro one supplier for various departments. However, the method of procurement and
identific ion of the supplier could not be ascertained and the contract agreement was not
provide for audit

ln the ci
purchas

mstances, value for money of the expenditure of Kshs.2,391,556 in respect of
of fuel, oil and lubricants could not be confirmed and Management was in

breach o the law

5.0 Lack ofApproved Budget

The sta ent of comparison of budget and actual amounts reflects original budget
amounts of Kshs.38,667,500 and Kshs.36,288,190 for revenue and expenditure

which i

to the financial statements reflects general expenses totalling Kshs.13,658,231
cludes an amount of Kshs.2,391,556 in respect of purchase of fuel, oil and

Ser ce

Level4
Hospital
Standard

Actuals
in the

Hospital Variance
Percentage

o,to

NerJ r Born Unit Cots 5 5 0 0

Nev I Born Unit lncubators 5 5 0 0

Fu ional lntensive Care
Uni Beds

6 6 0 0

Hig Dependency Unit Beds 6 0 6 100

Ren
Dial

I Unit with at least 5
is Machines

5 0 100

ionalOperating
res - Maternity and

Fun
The
Gen ral

2 1 1 50

Labo
Res citaire in Theatre

r Ward
0

Bed ( )apacity 150 84

1 I 1 96 53
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2 2 0

66 56

Total 85



respectively. Similarly, the statement reflects final budget amounts of Kshs.51,667,500
and Kshs.59,765,030 for revenue and expenditure respectively. However, the minutes of
the Board and County Assembly approving the budget were not provided for audit. This
is contrary to Section 13(d) of Siaya County Health Services Act, 2019 which requires
the Board to approve estimates before submission to the Executive Member and Section
41(2)which stipulates that revenue collected by a health facility shall be utilized only to
defray expenses incurred by the health facility as per the approved health budget
estimates by the County Assembly.

ln the circumstances, Management was in breach of the law.

6.0 Lack of Procurement Plan

Review of procurement document provided for audit revealed that the Hospital procured
goods and services without approved procurement plan disregarding Regulation 71(1) of
the Public Procurement and Asset Disposal Regulations, 2020 which requires the head
of the user department to initiate the procurement process through a requisition as per
the approved procurement plan. lt was therefore, not possible to verify the approved
procurement method and budgetary allocation.

ln the circumstances, Management was in breach of the law and value for money on the
procurements could not be confirmed.

The audit was conducted in accordance with ISSAI 4000. The standard requires that I

comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain assurance
about whether the activities, financial transactions and information reflected in the
financial statements are in compliance, in all material respects, with the authorities that
govern them. I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for my conclusion.

REPORT ON EFFECTIVENESS OF INTERNAL CONTROLS, RISK MANAGEMENT
AND GOVERNANCE

Conclusion

As required by Section 7(1)(a) of the PublicAuditAct,20l5, based on the procedures
performed, except for the matters described in the Basis for Conclusion on Effectiveness
of lnternal Controls, Risk Management and Governance section of my report, I confirm
that, nothing else has come to my attention to cause me to believe that internal controls,
risk management and overall governance were not effective.

Basis of Conclusion

1.0 Lack of Risk Management Policy, Disaster Recovery Plan

The Hospital Management has not put in place a risk management policy, strategies and
risk register to mitigate against risk. lt was therefore not clear how risk exposure was
managed. Further, the Hospital did not have a disaster recovery and business continuity

t
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pla s required for identifying, preventing, and mitigating against disasters and ensuring
tha its operations are not interrupted

ln
rec

e circumstances, the existence of an effective risk management and disaster
ry system could not be confirmed.

Lack of Standard Operating Procedures

Hospital did not provide approved standard operating procedures which play an
rtant role in guiding operations and acting as a reference guide. ln the absence of
ard operating procedures, it was not possible to confirm whether the internal
ols built within the financial and operational systems were functioning as intended
g the year under review.

circumstances, the effectiveness of the operations could not be confirmed

ack of !T lnternal Controls

of the Hospital's information technology systems revealed that during the year

ement of the strategic objectives of the Hospital may be undetected and hence not

2.0

The
tmp
stan
cont
duri

ln th

3.0

Revi

achie
rectifi

und review, Management did not establish lnformation Technology (lT) strategy and lT
stee ng committees, lT policy and business continuity plan and lT continuity plan to
ensu e smooth running of its operations. Lack of an approved lT policy may result in an
uncl r direction regarding maintenance of information security across the Hospital and
safe uarding its ICT assets. Further, without a sound and approved framework, users do
not h ve any rules and procedures to follow in order to minimize risk of errors, fraud and
the I s of data confidentiality, integrity and availability

ln th circumstances, Management's preparedness for interruptions and loss of critical
info ation in case of disaster could not be confirmed

4.0 ack of InternalAudit Review

Durin the year under review, it was noted that there was no internal audit review of the
Hosp l's activities contrary to Regulation 153(1) of the Public Finance Management
(Cou ty Governments) Regulations, 20'l 5 which requires internal auditors to review and
evalu te budgetary performance, financial management, transparency and accountability
mech nisms and processes in county government entities and review the effectiveness
of the nancial and non-financial performance management systems of the entities

ln th circumstances, lnternal control mechanisms that could have an impact on

in good time

5.0 F ilure to Establish Board of Management

The s tement of financial performance reflects Nil board expenses balance. However,
the b rd of management that is supposed to direct the Hospital in achieving its strategic
object s was not constituted contrary to Section 12 of the Siaya County Health Services
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Act,20'19 which states that a County Referral and a Sub-County Hospital shall be
governed by a Board. lt was therefore not clear who performed the functions of the Board
including approval of plans and programs for implementing county health strategies in the
hospital and supervision and control of the allocated funds.

ln the circumstances, the effectiveness of internal controls and governance provision of
strategic guidance on Management in the Hospital could not be confirmed.

6.0 Failure to Maintain Fixed Asset Register

Review of Hospital records and physical verification revealed that the Hospital owns
various assets including land, buildings, Civil works, motor vehicles, furniture, computers
and equipment. However, the Hospital did not maintain a fixed asset register for control
of its assets. ln addition, no evidence was provided to prove that the Hospital had valued
its assets.

ln the circumstances, the existence of an effective mechanism to safeguard assets could
not be confirmed and Management was in breach of the regulations.

The audit was conducted in accordance with ISSAI 2315 and ISSAI 2330. The standards
require that I plan and perform the audit to obtain assurance about whether effective
processes and systems of internal control, risk management and governance were
operating effectively, in all material respects. I believe that the audit evidence I have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my conclusion.

Responsibilities of Management and the Board of Management

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with lnternational Public Sector Accounting Standards (Accrual
Basis) and for maintaining such internal control as Management determines is necessary
to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal
control, risk management and overall governance.

ln preparing the financial statements, Management is responsible for assessing the
Hospital's ability to continue to sustain services, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to sustainability of services and using the applicable basis of accounting unless
Management is aware of the intention to terminate the Hospital or to cease operations.

Management is also responsible for the submission of the financial statements to the
Auditor-General in accordance with the provisions of Section 47 of the Public Audit Act,
2015.

ln addition to the responsibility for the preparation and presentation of the financial
statements described above, Management is also responsible for ensuring that the
activities, financial transactions and information reflected in the financial statements
comply with the authorities which govern them and that public resources are applied in
an effective way.

Report of the Auditor-General on Yala Sub-County Hospitalfor the year ended 30 June, 2023 - County Government
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The oard of Management is responsible for overseeing the Hospital's financial reporting
pro ss, reviewing the effectiveness of how Management monitors compliance with
rele ant legislative and regulatory requirements, ensuring that effective processes and
SYS ms are in place to address key roles and responsibilities in relation to governance

ofS ction 48 of the Public Audit Act, 2015 and submit the audit report in compliance with

and
envi

Aud

The
stat
and

Arti
isn

ore
reas
of th

lna
perf
finan
com

com
of in

amou

perfo

Beca
MISS

effect

risk management, and ensuring the adequacy and effectiveness of the control
nment

or-General's Responsibilities for the Audit

udit objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
ents as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
issue an auditor's report that includes my opinion in accordance with the provisions

r and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
nably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis
se financial statements.

ition to the audit of the financial statements, a compliance audit is planned and
ed to express a conclusion about whether, in all material respects, the activities,

ial transactions and information reflected in the financial statements are in
iance with the authorities that govern them and that public resources are applied in

iance, I consider internal control in order to give an assurance on the effectiveness
rnal controls, risk management and overall governance processes and systems in

to a relatively low level the risk that misstatements caused by error or fraud in
ts that would be material in relation to the financial statements being audited may

ing their assigned functions

e of its inherent limitations, internal control may not prevent or detect
ments and instances of noncompliance. Also, projections of any evaluation of
ness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become

229(7) of the Constitution. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but
a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with lSSAls will always detect

am rial misstatement and weakness when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud

ane ctive way, in accordance with the provisions of Article 229(6) of the Constitution
and bmit the audit report in compliance with Article 229(7) of the Constitution

Furth r, in planning and performing the audit of the financial statements and audit of

ACCO ance with the provisions of Section 7(1)(a) of the Public Audit Act, 2015 and submit
the a dit report in compliance with Article 229(7) of the Constitution. My consideration of
the in rnal control would not necessarily disclose all matters in the internal control that
might be material weaknesses under the lSSA|s. A material weakness is a condition in
which the design or operation of one or more of the internal control components does not
redu

OCCUT nd not be detected within a timely period by employees in the normal course of

inad uate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
polici

Asp

and procedures may deteriorate

judge
of an audit conducted in accordance with lSSAls, I exercise professional
nt and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. I also:
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ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for my opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by Management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of Management's use of the applicable basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Hospital's
ability to continue to sustain its services. lf I conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
I am required to draw attention in the auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify my opinion. My
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of my audit
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Hospital to cease to
continue to sustain its services.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures and whether the financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information and
business activities of the Hospital to express an opinion on the financial statements.

a

a

a

a

a

. Perform such other procedures as I consider necessary in the circumstances.

I communicate with Management regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that are identified during the audit.

I also provide Management with a statement that I have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on my independence and
where applicable, related safeguards.

FCPA CBS

'lO July,2O24
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Ya Sub-County Hospital (Siaya Coutrty Governntent)
A tttr IR rt and Financial Statements or The Year Ended 3(lh June 2023

14. Statement of Financial Performance for The Year Ended 30 June 2023

0.00

ue from non-exchange transactions

Tran 6 0.00 0.00sfers from the County Govemment

In- k

Gov,
7

11,813,787.50ind contributions from the County
trffnent

0.00Grar ts from donors and development partners 8 0.00

0.00Tran ;fers from other Government entities 9

0.00 0.00Publi c contributions and donations l0

6,022,484.00

Reve nue from exchange transactions

Rend
lncor

lt 32,630,725.00 25,216,541.00ring of services- Medical Service
te

Rever 29,000.00 37,500.00rue from rent of facilities

0.0013

0.00Misct llaneous Income t4

32,659,725.00

0.00

0.00

25,254,041.00Revet rue from exchange transactions

Total 44,473,513.00 3t,276,525.00revenue

Expe es

15 13,478,919.00 t0,446,907.00Medi l/Clinical costs

l6 8,9,4s,529.2s 8,295,575.00Empl costs

l7 0.00

0.00

f Management Expenses

tion and amortization exp€nse

Board

Dep 0.00

1,372,330.00 r,093,807.00Repa and maintenance 19

20 4,436,862.00 3,600,477.00

21 r 3,658,23 1.00 7,939,9fi.00

8,260.00Finan costs 22 18,1 19.00

31,384,937.00Total penses 41,909,990.00

Other ins/(losses)

s on disposal ol'nor-Crrrrent asselsGain/l 23 0.(x) 0.(x)

Deslription Note
FN 2022/2t23 Ft\'202112022

Kshs Kshs

6,022,484.00

0.00

11,813,787.00

12

Finarte /lnterest lncome

18

Grantsland subsidies

Gener{ expenses
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Yala b-County Hospital (Sioya Counly Goventment)
Ann R and Financial Statements for The Year Ended 3Oh June 2023
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24 0.00 0.00ized gain on fair value of investmentsU

25 0.00 0.00services contracts Gains/LossesM
0.00 0.00t lossm
0.00 0.00foreign exchange transactionsGrn
0.00 0.00other gains/(losses)E
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Yala Sub-County Hospitai (Siaya County Government)
Annual Report and Financial Statements for The Year Ended 3Oh June 2023

15. Statement of Financial Position As At 30'h June 2023

Assets

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents 27 8,217,063 8,91 0,I 55.00

Receivables from exchange transactions 28 8,153,020.00 4,020,060.00

Receivables from non-exchange transactions 29 0.00 0.00

Inventories 30 4,576,725.00 8,249,806.00

Total Current Assets 20,946,808.00 21,180,021.00

Non-current sssets

Property, plant, and equipment 3t 0.00 0.00

lntangible assets 32 0.00 0.00

lnvestment property 33 0.00 0.00

Total Non-current Assets 0.00 0.00

20,946,808.00 2r,180,021.00

Liabilities

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables 34 8,100,282.00 3,564,324.00

35 0.00 0.00Refundable deposits from customerVPatients

Provisions 36 0.00 0.00

Finance lease obligation 37 0.00 0.00

Current portion of deferred income 38 0.00 0.00

Current portion of borrowings 39 0.00 0.00

Social Benefits 4t 0.00 0.00

Total Current Liabilities 0.00 3,564,324.00

Non-current liabilities

Provisions 36 0.00 0.00

37 0.00 0.00

Non-Current portion of deferred income 38 0.00 0.00

Non - Current portion of borrowings 39 0.00 0.00

40 0.00 0.0()

Social Benefits 4t 0.(xr 0.00

J

Description Note
Fly 22t23 l'ty 2y22

Kshs Kshs

Total assets

Non-Current Finance lease obligation

Service concession liability



l'ala b-County Hospital (Siayo County Government)
Report and Financial Statementsfor The Year Ended 3Oh June 2023

TheH tal's financial statements were approved by the Board on
on its fbv ,\-

u
Attn

and signed

it{ r\ r
;vFi\t 1:{t

Cha
Boa of Management

c t
s\

o
e

Tota Non-current liabilities 0.00 0.00

Tota Liabilities E,100,2E2.00 3,564,324.00

Net , ssets

Reva uatlon reserve 0.00 0.00

Accu nulated surplus/Defi cit 2,563,523.00 ( r 08,412.00)

xxx 0.00

xxx

Total Net Assets and Liabilities

IIIIIIIII

I

4

Des{lption Note
FN 22ttS FN 2y22

Kshs X shs

CapiSl Fund

12,846,526.00 l7,615,697.00
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Yala Sub-County Hospital (Siaya County Government)
Annual Report ond Financial Statements for The Year Ended 3(lh June 2023

16. Statement of Changes in Net Asset for The Year Ended 30 June 2023

As at July 1,2021 9,613,r42.00 0.00 0.00 9,613,142.00

Revaluation gain xxx

Surplus/(deficir.) for the year -702,987.00 0.00 -702.987.00

Capital./Development grants 0.00 xxx

As at June 30,2022 uu Eil]R 0 ft00 [IEmg

At July 1,2022 mu EfiITl 0 [IEm&
Revaluation gain 0.00

Surplus/(deficit) for the year -693.092.00 2,s63,s23.00 1,870,43 I .00

Capital/Development grants xxx 0.00

At June 30, 2023 8,2 r 7,063.00 0.00 xxx 8,2r7,063.00

EqEIIIIIEE#ilE;I
r@IIEl@

_5

Descrlption Revalualion
reServc

Accumuhted
surplus/DeIIcit

Crpital
Fund

Tota/
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Yala b-County Hospital (Sioya Couttty Government)
A rttt R rt and Financial Statements for The Year Ended 3Oh June 2023

0.00grants received@ xxx

Nrin ash flows used in financing activities (xxx)

e/(decrease) in cash and cashN[!n
ts

2,563,523.00 (108,412.00)

and cash equivalents as at 1 July 22C 27 8,910,155.00 8,910,r 55.00

27 8,217,063.00 8,910,155.00and cash equivalents as at 30 June 23(IlF

@M
m
@
@

7

0.00



Yala Sub-County Hospital (Siaya County Government)
Annual Report and Financial Statements for The Year Ended 3Oh June 2023

17. Statement of Cash Flows for The Year Ended 30 June 2023

Cash flows from operating activities

Receipts

Transfers from the Countv Government 7 l r .813.788.00 6,022,484.00

Grants from donors and development partners 8 0.00 0.00

Transfers from other Government entities I 0.00

Public contributions and donations l0 0.00 0.00

Rendering of services- Medical Service Income 32,630.72s.00 25,216,541.00

Revenue from rent of facilities t2 29.000.00 37.500.00

Finance / interest income t3 0.00 0.00

Miscellaneou s receipts(s pe cifv ) 14 0.00 0.00

Total Receipts 44,473,513.00 31.276.525.00

Payments

Medical/Clinical costs l5 13,478,919.00 10.446,907.00

Employee costs t6 8,945,529.25 8,295,575.00

Board of Management Expenses 0.00 0.00

Depreciation and amortization Expenses l8 0.00

Repairs and maintenance 1,093,807.00

0.00

Grants and subsidies 20 4,436,862.00 3,600,477.00

General expenses 21 13,658,23 r.00 7,939.9r 1.00

Finance costs 22 18,119.00 8.260.00

Refunds paid out 0.00 0.00

Total Payments 41,909,990.00 31,384,937.00

Net cash flows flrom operating activities 42 2,563,523.00 (108,412.00)

Purchase ofproperty, plant, equipment &
intangible assets

0.00 0.00

Proceeds from the sale ofproperty, plant, and
equipment

0.00 0.00

Acquisition of investments 0.00 0.00

Net cash flows used in investing activities 2.563,523.00 ( 108,4 t 2.00)

Cash flows from financing activities

Proceeds from borrowin gs xxx 0.00

Repaynenl of borrowings (xxx )

IIIIIIII
6

Description Note
FY 2027).0X3 Fy2A2t-2022

Kshs Kshs

0.00

ll

17

t9 l,372,330.00

Cash flows from investing activities

().00



l'ala Sub- Court
,U l eporl and Financial Statements for The Year Ended 30h June 2023

a b 6=(a+b) d .=1c_d) f=<llc"h
Kshs Kshs Kshs Kshs

Rcvenue

Transfers from the County Government 8,020,000 5,000,000 13,020,000 I r,813,788 t,206,2t2 98

Grants from donors and development
partners

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 /o

Transfers from other Government entities 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 /o

Public contributions and donations 0.00 000 0.00 0.00 0.00 o//o

30,617,500 8,000,000 38,617,500 32,630,725 5,986,775 840h

Rcvenue from rent of facilities 0.00 30,000 29.000 1,000 97%30,000

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 o//o

M iscel laneous receipts (spec i.fy) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 o//o
'fotal income 38,667,500 13,000,000 5l,667,500 44,473,513 7,,193,987 93

10,916,300 9,470,500 20.386,800 I 3,478,91 9 6,907,881 94

6,386,175 6,500,000 l 2,886,1 75 8,945,529.25 3,985,64s 69Employee costs

Rcmuneration of directors 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 o//o

2,428,500 0.00 2,428,500 I ,371 ,980 r,056,520 56Repairs and maintenance

Grants and subsidies 0.00 5,670,690 4,436,861 t,233,829 78

General expenses

5,670,690

lc,371,525 7,500,000 r 8,370,525 13,658,231 4,712,294 76

Finance costs 15,000 7,340 22,340 t8,t t9 4.221
'tO'tr\L I'IXPENDITURIt 36,288,190 23,477,840 59,765,030 4l,909,990.0 17,900,390 66

Surplus for the period xxx IIT xxx o//o

Capital expenditure rxx xrx xIx xxx %

I

8

18. Statement of Comparison of Budget and Actual Amounts for Year Ended 30 Jun 2023

Description fin*ttgEt :f!ffi6F
comPlrsbl€

besis
budget

PEffi
differcnce

z*,.&=
prilislfi

on

Kshs

0.00

Rendering of services- Medical Service
Income

Finance / interest income

Expenses

Medical/Clinical costs

8l

2,563,523.00

xxx
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Sub-County Hospital (Siaya Counly Government)
A nual Report and Financial Statements r The Year Ended 3Ah June 2023

19. Notes to the Financial Statements

l. General lnformation

Yala Sub County Hospital entity is established by and derives its authority and

accountability from Health Act. The entity is wholly owned by the Siaya County

Govemment and is domiciled in Siaya County in Kenya. The entity's principal activity

is provision of health services.

2. Statement of Compliance and Basis of Preparation

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis except for the

measurement at re-valued amounts of certain items of property, plant, and equipment,

marketable securities and financial instmments at fair value, impaired assets at their

estimated recoverable amounts and actuarially determined liabilities at their present

value. The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Intemational Public

Sector Accounting Standards (IPSAS) allows the use of estimates and assumptions. It

also requires management to exercise judgement in the process of applying the entitv's

accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree ofjudgment or complexity, or

where assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial statements, are disclosed

in Note xx The hnancial staternents have been prepared and presented in Kenya

Shillings, which is the functional and reporting currency of the entity. The financial

statements have been prepared in accordance with the PFM Act, and (include any other

applicable legislation), and Intemational Public Sector Accounting Standards (IPSAS).

The accounting policies adopted have been consistently applied to all the years presented.

tn



Yala Sub-County Hospital (Siaya County Government)
Annual Report and Financial Statementsfor The Year Ended 3Ah June 2023

3. Adoption of New and Revised Standards

i. Nen'and amended standards and interpretations in issue effective in the l,ear ended 30

June 2023.

IPSAS

Financial

Instruments

4t: Applicable: I't January 2023

The objective of IPSAS 4l is to establish principles for the financial

reporting of financial assets and liabilities that will present relevant

and useful information to users of financial statements for their

assessment of the amounts, timing and uncertainty of an Entity's

future cash flows.

IPSAS 4l provides users of financial statements with more useful

information than IPSAS 29, by:

. Applying a single classification and measurement model for

financial assets that considers the characteristics of the

asset's cash flows and the objective for which the asset is

held;

. Applyrng a single forward-looking expected credit loss

model that is applicable to all financial instruments subject

to impairment testing; and

. Applyrng an improved hedge accounting model that

broadens the hedging arrangements in scope of the

guidance. The model develops a strong link benveen an

Entity's risk managernent strategies and the accounting

trea&nent for instruments held as part of the risk

management strategy.

IPSAS 42: Social

Benefits

Applicable: l'r January 2023

The objective of this Standard is to improve the relevance, faithful

representativeness and comparability of the information that a

reporting Entity provides in its financial statements about social

benefits. The information provided should help users of the financial

slalernenls and general-purpose financial reports irssess:

ll

Standard Efiective date and impact



Su b-Cou nty Hospital (Siaya County Govern ment)
A ual R rt and Financial Statements for The Year Ended 3Uh lune 2023

Amendments to

Other IPSAS

resulting from

IPSAS 41,

Financial

Instruments

Applicable: l'r January 2023

a) Amendments to IPSAS 5, to update the guidance related to the

components of borrowing costs which were inadvertently

omitted when IPSAS 4l was issued.

b) Amendments to IPSAS 30, regarding illustrative examples on

hedging and credit risk which were inadvertently omitted

when IPSAS 4l was issued.

c) Amendments to IPSAS 30, to update the guidance for

accounting for financial guarantee contracts which were

inadvertently omitted when IPSAS 4l was issued.

Amendments to IPSAS 33, to update the guidance on classifoing

financial instruments on initial adoption of accrual basis IPSAS which

were inadvertently omitted when IPSAS 4l was issued.

Other

improvements to

IPSAS

Applicable 1"' January 2023

o IPSAS 22 Disclosure of Financial Information about the General

Governmenl Sector.

Amendments to refer to the latest Systern of National Accounts (SNA

2008).

o IPSAS 39: Employee Benefits

Now deletes the term composite social security benefits as it is no

longer defined in IPSAS.

o IPSAS 29: Financial instruments: Recognition ond Measurement

Standard no longer included in the 2023 IPSAS handbook as it is now

superseded by IPSAS 4l which is applicable from l'' January 2023.

11

Standard Efrecdvc date and impaet

(a) The nature of such social benefits provided by the Entity.

(b) The key features of the operation ofthose social benefit schemes;

and

(c) The impact of such social benefits provided on the Entity's

financial performance, financial position and cash flows.



Yala Sub-Coun$ Hospital (Siaya County Government)
Annual Report and Financial Statements for The Year Ended 3Uh June 2023

ii) New and amended standards and interpretations in issue but not yet effective in the year

ended 30 June 2023.

Applicable ls' January 2025

The Standard requires:-

i. Assets that meet the criteria to be classified as held for sale to be

measured at the lower of carrying amount and fair value less costs

to sell and the depreciation of such assets to cease and:

iL Assets that meet the criteria to be classified as held for sale to be

presented separately in the statement of financial position and the

results of discontinued operations to be presanted separately in the

statement of financial performance.

iii) Early adoption of standards

The Entity did not early - adopt any new or amended standards in the financial year or the

entity adopted the following standards early (state the standards, reason for early adoption

and impact on entity's financial statements.)

IPSAS 43 Applicable ls' January 2025

The standard sets out the principles for the recognition, measurement,

presentation, and disclosure of leases. The objective is to ensure that

lessees and lessors provide relevant information in a manner that faithfully

represents those transactions. This information gives a basis for users of

frnancial statements to assess the effect that leases have on the financial

position, financial performance and cash flows of an Entity.

The new standard requires entities to recognise, measure and present

information on right of use assets and lease liabilities.

IPSAS 44:

Non- Current

Assets Held

for Sale and

Discontinued

Operations

l1

Standard Effective datc aDd impact



a Su b-Cou nty Hospital (Siaya County G ove rnment)
A ual Report and Financial Stotements r The Year Ended 3Ah June 2023

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Revenue recognition

Revenue from non-exchange transactions

sfers from other Government entities

enues from non-exchange transactions with other govemment entities are measured at fair
lue and recognized on obtaining control of the asset (cash, goods, services and property) if

transfer is free from conditions and it is probable that the economic benefits or service

I related to the asset will flow to the Drtity and can be measured reliably. To the extent

t there is a related condition attached that would give rise to a liability to repay the amount,

amount is recorded in the statement of financial position and realised in the statement of
ial performance over the useful life of the asset that has been acquired using such funds

Revenue from exchange transactions

dering of services

entity recognizes revenue from rendering of services by reference to the stage of
pletion when the outcome of the transaction can be estimated reliably. The stage of
pletion is measured by reference to labour hours incurred to date as a percentage of total

ted labour hours. Where the contract outcome cannot be measured reliably, revenue is

gnized only to the extent that the expenses incurred are recoverable.

S of goods

from t!.e sale of goods is recogrrized when the significant risks and rewards of

hip have been transferred to the buyer, usually on delivery of the goods and when the

unt of revenue can be measured reliably, a;rJ it is probable that the economic benefits or

ce potential associated with the transaction will flow to the entity

c

c

s

R tal income

R tal income arising from operating leases on investment properties is accounted for on a

ght-line basis over the lease terms and included in revenueS

tA

b.

Inlerest income
I

lnttrest income is accrued using the effective yield method. The effective yield discounts

es{mated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that asset's net

.ur[yin, amount. The method applies this yield to the principal outstanding to determine

intf."rt income for each period.



Yala Sub-County Hospital (Sioya County Government)
Annual Report and Financial Statements for The Year Ended 3Oh June 2023

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

h. Budget information

The original budget for FY xxx was approved by Board on xxxx. Subsequent revisions or

additional appropriations were made to the approved budget in accordance with specific

approvals from the appropriate authorities. The additional appropriations are added to the

original budget by the entity upon rereiving the respective approvals in order to conclude the

final budget. Accordingly, the entity recorded additional appropriations ofxxxx on the FY xxx

budget following the Board's approval. The entity's budget is prepared on a different basis to

the actual income and expenditure disclosed in the financial statements. The financial

statements are prepared on accrual basis using a classification based on the nature of expenses

in the statement of financial performance, whereas the budget is prepared on a cash basis. The

amounts in the financial statements were recast from the accrual basis to the cash basis and

reclassified by presentation to be on the same basis as the approved budget.

A comparison of budget and achral amounts, prepared on a comparable basis to the approved

budget, is then presented in the statement of comparison of budget and actual amounts. In

addition to the Basis difference, adjustrnents to amounts in the financial statements are also

made for differences in the formats and classification schemes adopted for the presentation of

the financial statements and the approved budget. A statement to reconcile the aciral amounts

on a comparable basis included in the statement of comparison of budget and acfual amounts

and the actuals as per the staternent of financial perfc;mance has been presented on page.B

under section xxx of these financial statements.

c. Taxes

Sales tax/ Value Added Tax

Expenses and assets are recognized net of the amount of sales tax, except:

D When the sales tax incurred on a purchase ofassets or services is not recoverable

from the taxation authority, in which case, the sales tax is recognized as part of the

cost ofacquisition of the asset or as part of the expense item, as applicable.

F When receivables and payables are stated with the amount of sales tax included.

The net amount of sales tax recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority

is included as part of receivables or payables in the statement offinancial position.

l<
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otes to tlre Financial Statements (Continued)

Investment property

vestrnent properties are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs. The carrying

unt includes the replacement cost of components ofan existing invesnnent property at the

e that cost is incurred if the recognition criteria are met and excludes the costs of day-to-

y maintenance of an investment property

trnent property acquired through a non-exchange transaction is measured at its fair value

a the date ofacquisition. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties are measured

u the cost model and are depreciated over a period ofxs years. Investnent properties are

ognized either when they have been disposed of or when the investrnent property is

tly withdrawn from use and no future economic benefit or service potential is

ted from its disposal. The difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying

t of the asset is recognized in the surplus or deficit in the period of de-recognition

T fers are made to or from investnent property only when there is a change in use

e. Property, plant and equipment

property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and

lm ent losses. Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of

rh

d

at

s

, When significant parts of property, plant and equipment are reqdired to be replaced

ls, the entity recognizes such parts as individual assets with specific useful lives and

d iates them accordingly. Likewise, when a major inspection is performed its cost is

in the carrying amount of the plant and equipment as a replacement if the

tion criteria are satisfied. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognized in

or deficit as incurred. Where an asset is acquired in a non-exchange transaction for nil

OI consideration the asset is initially measured at its fair value

IA



Yala Sub-County Hospital (Siaya County Government)
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

g. Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are initially recognized at cost. The cost of intangible

assets acquired in a non-exchange transaction is their fair value at the date of the exchange.

Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated

amortization and accumulated impairment losses. Internally generated intangible assets,

excluding capitalized development costs, are not capitalized and expenditure is reflected in

surplus or deficit in the period in which the expenditure is incurred. The useful life of the

intangible assets is assessed as either finite or indefinite.

t1

f. Leases

Finance leases are leases that transfer substantially the entire risks and benefits incidental to

ownership of the leased item to the Entity. Assets held under a finance lease are capitalized at

the commencement of the lease at the fair value of the leased property or, if lower, at the present

value of the future minimum lease payments. The Entity also recognizes the associated lease

liability at the inception of the lease. The liability recognized is measured as the present value

of the future minimum lease payments at initial recognition.

Subsequent to initial recognition, lease payments are apportioned between finance charges and

reduction of the lease liability so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining

balance of the liability. Finance charges are recognized as finance costs in surplus or deficit.

An asset held under a finance lease is depreciated over the useful life of the asset. However, if
there is no reasonable certainty that the Entity will obtain ownership of the asset by the end of

the lease term, the asset is depreciated over the shorter of the estimated useful life of the asset

and the lease term.

Operating leases are leases that do not transfer substantially all the risks and benefits incidental

to ownership of the leased item to the Entity. Operating lease payments are recognized as an

operating expense in surplus or deficit on a sraight-line basis over the lease term.



a Su b-Cou nty Hospitol (Siayo County Govern ment)
A ual Re rt and Financial Statementsfor The Year Ended 3Uh June 2023

'otes to lhe Financial Statements (Continued)

Research and development costs

e Entity expenses research costs as incurred. Development costs on an individual proj ect are

ognized as intangible assets when the Entity can demonstrate:

) The technical feasibility of completing the asset so that the asset will be

available for use or sale

P Its intention to complete and its ability to use or sell the asset

! The asset will generate future economic benefits or service potential

D The availability of resources to complete the asset

D The ability to measure reliably the expenditure during development.

F wing initial recognition of an asset, the asset is carried at cost less any accumulated

ortization and accumulated impairment losses. Amortization of the asset begins when

lopment is complete and the asset is available for use. It is amortized over the period of

e future benefit. During the period of development, the asset is tested for impairment

lly with any imparment losses recognized immediately in surplus or deficit.

T. Financial instruments

S 4l addresses the classification, measurement and de-recognition of financial assets and

ial liabilities, introduces new rules for hedge accounting and a new impairment model

fo financial assets. 7he enti1, does not have any hedge relationships and therefore the nevv

h accounting rules have no impact on the Company's financial statements. (amend as

ate)o

m

A

fi ial liability or equity instrument of another entity. At initial recognition, the entity

ial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a

a financial asset or hnancial liability at its fair value plus or minus, in the case of a

ial asset or financial liability not at fair value through surplus or deficit, transaction costs

tha directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of the financial asset or financial liability

l9



Yalo Sub-County Hospital (Siaya County Government)
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Notes to the Financial Stalements (Continued)

Financial assets

Classification of Iinancial assets

The entity classifies its financial assets as subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value

through net assets/ equity or fair value through surplus and deficit on the basis of both the

entity's management model for hnancial assets and the contractual cash flow characteristics of

the financial asset. A financial asset is measured at amortized cost when the irnancial asset is

held within a management model whose objective is to hold financial assets in order to collect

contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified

dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal

outstanding. A financial asset is measured at fair value through net assets/ equity if it is held

within the management model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash

flows and selling financial assets and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on

specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal

amount outstanding. A financial asset shall be measured at fair value through surplus or deficit

unless it is measured at amortized cost or fair value through net assets/ equity unless an entity

has made irrevocable election at initial recognition for particular investrnents in equity

instruments.

Subsequent measurement

Based on the business model and the cash flow characteristics, the er,tity classifies its fmancial

assets into amortized cost or fair value categories for financial instruments. Movements in fair

value are presented in either surplus or deficit or through net assets/ equity subject to certain

criteria being met.

Amortized cost

Financial assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those cash flows

represent solely payments of principal and interest, and that are not designated at fair value

through surpius or deficit, are measured at amortized cost. A gain or loss on an instrument that

is subsequently measured at amortized cost and is not part of a hedging relationship is

recognized in profit or loss when the asset is de-recognized or impaired. Interest income from

these financial assets is included in finance income using the effective interest rate method.

lo
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tes lo the Financial Statements (Continued)

air value through net assets/ equig'

inancial assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows and for selling the

ial assets, where the assets' cash flows represent solely payments of principal and

terest, are measured at fair value through net assets/ equity. Movements in the carrying

unt are taken through net assets, except for the recognition of impairment gains or losses,

terest revenue and foreign exchange gains and losses which are recognized in surplus/deficit

terest income from these financial assets is included in finance income using the effective

t rate method

value through surplus or deficit

assets would result in a fair value through surplus or deficit model

e and other receivables

T and other receivables are recognized at fair values less allowances for any uncollectible

ts. Trade and other receivables are assessed for impairment on a continuing basis. An

es e is made of doubtful receivables based on a review of all outstanding amounts at the

end

F

I

\\'l

ty

ial assets that do not meet the criteria for amortized cost or fair value through net assets/

are measured at fair value through surplus or deficit. A business model where the entity

es hnancial assets with the objective of realizing cash flows through solely the sale of

rment

entity assesses, on a forwardJooking basis, the expected credit loss ('ECL') associated

its financial assets carried at amortized cost and fair value through net assets/equity. The

en ty recognizes a loss allowance for such losses at each reporting date. Critical estimates and

sl lcan t judgments made by management in determining the expected credit loss (ECL) are

set t in Note xx

Fi cial liabilities

C ification

Th entit-v classifies its liabilities as subsequently measured at amortized cost except for

ial liabilitics measured through profil or lossII

)A
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Conrtnued)

j. Inventories

Inventory is measured at cost upon initial recognition. To the extent that inventory was received

through non-exchange transactions (for no cost or for a nominal cost), the cost of the inventory

is its fair value at the date of acquisition.

Costs incurred in bringing each product to its present location and conditions are accounted for

as follows:

) Raw materials: purchase cost using the weighted average cost method.

D Finished goods and work in progress: cost of direct materials and labour, and a

proportion of manufacturing overheads based on the normal operating capacity but

excluding borrowing costs.

After initial recognition, inventory is measured at the lower cost and net realizable value.

However, to the extent that a class of inventory is distributed or deployed at no charge or for a

nominal charge, that class of inventory is measured at the lower cost and the current

replacement cost.Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of

operations, less the estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make

the sale, exchange, or distribution. Inventories are recognized as an expense when deployed for

utilization or consumption in the ordinary course of operations of the Entity.

lc Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Entity has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a

result ofa past event, it is probable that an outflow ofresources embodying economic benefits

or service potential will be required to seftle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made

of the amount of the obligation.

Where the Entity expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for example, under an

insurance contract, the reimbursement is recognized as a separate asset only when the

reimbursement is virtually certain.

The expense relating to any provision is presented in the statement of financial performance

net of any reimbursement.

11
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to the Financial Statements (Continued)

Social Bencfits

ial benefits are cash transfers provided to i) specific individuals and / or households that

eet the eligibility criteria, ii) mitigate the effects of social risks and iii) Address the need of

ciety as a whole. The entity recognises a social benefit as an expense for the social benefit

heme at the same time that it recognises a liability. The liability for the social benefit scheme

measured at the best estimate of the cost (the social benefit payments) that the entify will

ur in fulfilling the present obligations represented by the liability

Contingent liabilities

Entity does not recognize a contingent [ability but discloses details ofany contingencies

the notes to the financial statements unless the possibility of an outflow of resources

economic benefits or service potential is remote

Contingent assets

Entity does not recognize a contingent asset but discloses details ofa possible asset whose

e is contingent on the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain fufure

not wholly within the control of the Entity in the notes to the financial statements.

gent assets are assessed continually to ensure that developments are appropriately

in the hnancial statements. If it has become virnrally certain that an inflow of

mic benefits or service potential will arise and the asset's value can be me:sured reliably,

th asset and the related revenue are recognized in the financial statements of the period in

the change occurs

Nature and purpose of reserves

entity creates and maintains reserves in terms of specific requirements. (Entity to state the

maintained and appropriate policies adopted.)

p Changes in accounting policies and estimates

Th Entity recognizes the effects of changes in accounting policy retrospectively. The effects

hanges in accounting policy are applied prospectively if retrospective application isof

im

re

o.

l'

ctical
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

q. Emplol,ee benefits

Retirenrent benefi t plans

The Entity provides retirement benefits for its employees and directors. Defined contribution
plans are post-employment benefit plans under which an entity pays fixed contributions into a
separate entity (a fund) and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further
contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient assets to pay all employee benefits relating to
employee service in the current and prior periods. The contributions to fund obligations for the

payment of retirement benefits are charged against income in the year in which they become

payable. Defined benefit plans are post-employment benefit plans other than defined-
contribution plans. The defined benefit funds are actuarially valued tri-annually on the

projected unit credit method basis. Deficits identified are recovered through lump-sum
payments or increased future contributions on a proportional basis to all participating
employers. The contributions and lump sum payments reduce the post-employment benefit
obligation.

r. Foreign currency transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially accounted for at the ruling rate of exchange on

the date of the transaction. Trade creditors or debtors denominated in foreign crrrency are

reported at the statement of financial position reporting date by applying the exchange rate on

that date. Exchange differences arising from the settlement of creditors, or from the reporting

ofcreditors at rates different from those at which they were initially recorded during the period,

are recognized as income or expenses in the period in which they arise.

s. Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are capitalized against qualiffing assets as part of property, plant and

equipment. Such borrowing costs are capitalized over the period during which the asset is being

acquired or constructed and borrowings have been incurred. Capitalization ceases when

construction of the asset is complete. Further borrowing costs are charged to the statement of

financial performance.

t. Related parties

The Entity regards a related party as a person or an entity with the ability to exert control

individually or jointly, or to exercise significant influence over the Entity, or vice versa.

Members of key nranagement are regarded as related parties and comprise the directors. the

CEO/principal and senior nranagers.

,1
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otes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

Scn'ice concession arrangements

s

C

Entity analyses all aspects of service concession arrangements that it enters into in

g the appropriate accounting heatment and disclosure requirements. In particular,

a private party contributes an asset to the arrangement, the Entity reoognizes that asset

and only when, it controls or regulates the services. The operator must provide together

th the asset, to whom it must provide them, and at what price. In the case of assets other than

le-of-life' assets, it controls, through ownership, beneficial entitlement or otherwise - any

cant residual interest in the asset at the end of the arrangement. Any assets so recognized

measured at their fair value. To the extent that an asset has been recognized, the Entity also

gnizes a corresponding liability, adjusted by a cash consideration paid or received.

Cash and cash equivalents

Subsequent events

have been no events subsequent to the financial year end with a sigrrificant impact on the

ial statements for the year ended June 30, 2023.

and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and cash at bank, short-term deposits on call

highly liquid investments with an original maturity of three months or less, which are

dily convertible to known amounts ofcash and are subject to insignificant risk of changes

ln lue. Bank account balances include amounts held at the Central Bank of Kenya and at

us commercial banks at the end of the hnancial year. For the purposes of these financial

au

S

rised public olficers and/or institutions which were not surrendered or accounted for at

ents, cash and cash equivalents also include short term cash imprests and advances to

rh end of the financial year

\1 Comparative figures

necessary comparative figures for the previous financial year have been amended or

gured to conform to the r:r;quired changes in presentation.

I

Th

fi

)A
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5. Significant Judgments and Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

The preparation of the Entity's financial staten'rents in conformiry u,ith IPSAS requires

management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts

of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the

end of the reporting period. However, uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could

result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of the asset or

liability affected in future periods.

Estimates and assumptions.

The key assumptions conceming the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at

the reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustrnent to the carrying

amounts of assets and liabilities within the next hnancial year, are described below. The Entity

based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the consolidated financial

statements were prepared. However, existing circumstances and assumptions about future

developments may change due to market changes or circumstances arising beyond the control

of the Entity. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur.( IPSAS l 140)

Useful lives and residual values

The useful lives and residual values of assets are assessed using the following indicators to

inform potential future use and value from disposal:

and processes.

Provisions

Provisions were raised and management determined an estimate based on the information

available. Additional disclosure of these estimates of provisions is included in Note xxx.

Provisions are measured at the management's best estimate of the expenditure required to settle

the obligation at the reporting date and are discounted to present value where the effect is

material..

)<
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otes to Financial Statements Continued

Transfers from the Countv Government

6 Transfers from The Coun Government

re that the amount recorded above as having been received from the County fully reconciles to
th amount recorded by the amount recorded as transferred by the Counfl. An acknowledgemenl
n recetp t should be raised in .favour of the sending County Government. The details of the

ciliation have been included under appendix xxx)

ounl recognised in the stdtement of.financial performance should be the recurrent grant and lhe
oPment grant lo the exlenl that there are no condilions attached. Total of column I should tie to
6(the port on unconditional grants)

d,

,l

Unconditional grants

xxx xxx)perational grant

xxx xxx-evel 5 grants

xxx xxxJnconditional development grants

xxx xxx)ther grants

xxx xxx

)onditional grants

xxx xxxJser fee forgone

xxxlransforming health services for Universal care proj ect (THUCP) xxx

xxx xxx)ANIDA
xxx xxxVards Development grant

xxx xxx'aediatric block grant

xxx xxx\dministration block grant

xxx xxxI aboratory grant

xxr xxx'otal government grants and subsidies

xxx
x
(

x County
iovernment xxx xxx xxx

IIX1 otal xrx rxx xxx xxr

)A

otrl grill
incomc
during tLc
yerr

Comosretivc
Period

pescription
FN 22/23 FN 2V22

KShs KShs

rcL! tf(TYE

ftme of tle
lhri.v
{ndbs t[c
fiaut

Amull
rcaold?ed to
St tcmeEt of
flnucld
IrGrforErDcer

KShs

Anouil
dcfcrrcd
u[dcr
defcrred
lrcomc

XSbr

Amount
rccognilcd
in crpitel
ftud

xxx



Yala Sub-County Hospital (Siayo Counly Government)
Annual Report and Financial Statements for The Year Ended 3Ah June 2023

Notes to Financial Statements Continued

7. In Kind Contributions fronr Thc Countv Governmenl

(These include payments made directly by the County Governments for staff salaries and
medical drugs. These should be recorded both as income and expense for completeness of
financial statements)

8. Grants From Donors and Development Partners

(Provide brief explanation for this revenue)

8 (a) Grants from donors and development partners (Classification)

Salaries and wages 6.500.000 6,022,484

Medical supplies-Drawings fughts (KEMSA) 5,3 r 3,787.50 0.00

Pharmaceuticals and Non-Pharnaceutical Supplies (other
suppliers)

0.00 0.00

Utiliry bills 0.00 0.00

Total grants in kind l1.813,787.5 6,022,484

Cancer Centre grant- DANIDA xxx xxx
World Bank grants xxx xxx
Paediatric ward granr JICA xxxxxx
Research grants xxx xxx
Other grants (specrfy) xxx xxx
Total grants from development
Fartners

xxx xxx

Donor e.g., DANIDA xxx xxx xxx xxx

xxx xxx xxx xxx xxx

World Bank xxx xxx xxx xxx xxx

Total II]{ XII IXI I\\ rxx

)'7

Descripdon
FN

202A2023
F/Y

202U2022
KShs KShs

Description
FN 22123 FN 202y2022

I(Shs KShs

Nenc of thc E
scndlng tLc grent

ntitr

Anount
rocogrlzcd to
Strtcmcnl of
filruclrl
pcrformrnce

ADorDt
d.fcrrd
undcr
dGtcr.d
Incoac

A.aoult
rccogdrcd
lr crpltal
furd.

Totrl
Srr!t
lrcomc
dnrirg

I thc yeer

Ii(JT XSl! XSk

Comperrdve
Perkrd

I(Sh
xxx

JICA



tes to Financial Statements Continued

I Transfers From Other Government Entities

10. Public Contributions and Donations

( de brief explanation .for this revenue)

(a)Reconciliations of amortised grants

lransfer from National Government (Ministry of Health) xxx xxx

Iransfer from xxx National Hospital xxx

Iransfer from xxx Institute xxx xxx

fotal Transfers xxx xxtt

ublic donations xxx xxx

ronations from local leadership xxx xxx

),onations from religious institutions xxx xxx
lonations from other intemational organisations and
rdividuals

xxx xxx

)ther donations (s p e c ify ) xxx xxx

xxx xxx)onations in kind-amortised

otal donations and sponsorships xxx xxr

B rlance unspent at beginning of year rxx xxx
C rlTent year recerpts xxx xxx
At nortised and transferred to revenue xxx xxx
Cr ,nditions to be met - remain liabilities xxr

I
I
I

Ei
EI
TI
E
E

)a

Ylla Sub-County Hospital (Siaya County Government)
Alnual Report and Financial Statementsfor The Year Ended 3Ah June 2023

pescripdon FN 2423 FlY 202,/2022

KShs KShs

xxx

Ilcscription
FN

22t23
F/Y

202U2022
KShs KShs

FN 22D3 FN 2021nO22

xxx



Yala Sub-County Hospital (Sioya County Government)
Annual Repon and Financial Statements for The Year Ended 3Ah June 2023

Notes to Financial Statements Continued

I l. Rcndering of Services-Nl cdical Service Income

(Other medical services fee relates to other charges not listed above and should be specified)

2,678,825 2,143,795.00

Non-Pharmaceuticals 781,200 2,940,756.00

Laboratory 3,460,670 3,r 36,950.00

Radiology r,867,650 1,369,600.00

Orthopedic and Trauma Technology 232.800 44,700.00

Theatre 439.000 542,000.00

Dental Services 549.900 537. r 00.00

NHIF Rebates/Linda Mama 15,407,620 11,771,260.00

Attachment Fee 287.000 262,000.00

Mortuary 3,560.200 2,419,500.00

Occupational Therapy 9.300

Out Patient Department 568.200 406.3s0.00

Disability Assessment 200

544.880 525.540.00

Physiotherapy I 17.300 197.460.00

59.200 6l.600.00

Medical Examination

Clinics
80,400 114,300.00

Eye Clinic 97,950 49,650.00

In-Patient 1,798,4J0 1,276,160.00

Ambulance 90,000 74,500.00

32,630,725 25,216,541.00

,o

Descrlption
FN 22n3 FN 202y2022

Kshs Kshs

Pharmaceuticals

Medical Records

Total revenue from the rendering of
services



A
Sub-County Hospital (Siaya County Govcrnment)

rt ond Financial Statementsfor The Year Ended 3Ah June 2023

otes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

Revenue From Rent of Facilities'12.

13. Finance /Interest Income

14. Miscellaneous Income

All income should be classified as far as possible in the relevont classes and miscellaneous
ltl should be used lo recognise income not elsewhere classi.fied)

S

lesidential property 0.00
lommercial property 29.000.00 37.500.00

37.s00.00lotal Revenue from rent of facilities 29.000.00

iash investments and fixed deposits xxx xxx

rterest income from short- tern/ current
sposits

xxx xxx

rterest income from Treasury Bills xxx xxx

rterest income from Treasury Bonds xxx xxx

rterest from outstanding debtors xxx

otal finance income xxx

xxx

xxx

e recovenes xxx xxx

xxx xxxfrom sale of tender

ces concessron tncomes xxx xxx

le of goods (water, publications, containers etc.) xxx xxx
t.: backs (Deposits, payments in advance etc.) xxx xxx

xxxdebts recoveredTJ xxx

a ers (Specify) xxx xxx

Miscellaneous incomen xxx xxx

I
I
I

!i
l
E
E
E
E

@
E

E
E
E

E
tr

1n

pescription
FN 22t23 F/Y 202t/2022

Kshs Ksbs

[tcscrlption
FN 2022t2023 Fn'2021n022

Kshs Kshs

..rf
FN2A23 I rrY 202rnu?2

il(l''



Yala Sub-County Hospital (Siaya County Government)
Annual Report and Financial Statements for The Year Ended 3Uh June 2023

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

15. I\Iedical/ Clinical Costs

(Other medical/clinical related costs refers to all other costs involved in management of the patients
directly not analysed above.)

16. Employee Costs

(Social contribution relates to expenses incurred by the employer towards social welfare ofEmployees)

Dental costs/ materials 165.050 75,700.00

Laboratory chemicals and reagents 2,450,12.00

Nutrition Materials 150,000 290.400.00

Food and Ration 4,8'70,992 3,485,140.00

Uniform, clothing, and linen 0.00

Dressing and Non-Pharmaceuticals 1,921,939 |,t'72,602.00

t.279,296 |,676,687.00

Health information stationery r,603,575

Reproductive health materials 0.00

Sanitary and cleansing Materials r 1 1,200 38.000.00

Purchase of Medical gases 35't,278 200,726.00

X-Ray/Radiology supplies 998,400 364,800.00

Other medical related clinical costs (specrfi) 0.00 xxx

Total medical/ clinical costs 13,478,919 10,446,907.00

Salaries, wages, and allowances 8,945,529.25 8.295,575.00

0.00 0.00

0.00Service gratuity

Performance and other bonuses 0.00

Staff medical expenses and Insurance cover 0.00 0.00

Group personal accident insurance and WIBA 0.00 0.00

Social contribution 0.00 0.00

Other employee cosls (specify) 0.00 0.00

Emplovee costs 8,295,57s.00

1t

Description
FN 22t23 FN 202y2022

Kshs Kshs

2,021,188.80

0.00

Pharmaceutical supplies

692,700.00

FN 2021nO22

I

Contributions to pension schemes

0.00

0.00

8,945,529.00



Sub-County Hospital (Siaya County Government)
A al Re rt and Financial Statements r The Yeor Ended 3Ah June 2023

otes to the Financial Statements (Continued/

. Board of l\Ianagenrent Expenses

I . Depreciation and Amortization Expense

depreciation and amortization

I Repairs And Maintenance

lhairman's Honoraria 0.00 0.00

0.00 0.00litting allowance

vlileage 0.00 0.00

0.00nsurance expenses 0.00

nduction and training 0.00 0.00

0.00lravel and accommodation allowance 0.00

0.00 0.00\irtime allowances
-otal 0.00 0.00

xxx xxx

xxx xxx

roperty, plant and equipment

xtangible assets

lvestment property carried at cost xxx xxx

xxx xxx

P operty- Buildings 884,350 669,21'7.00

20.000.00N edical equipment 0.00

o ffice equipment 10,0u0 0.00

20.M5 0.00F rmiture and fittings

C mputers and accessories 35.000 8,990.00

v otor vehicle expenses 257,015 203.700.00

165.520 r 9r,900.00M aintenance of civil works(Plant and Machinery)

T rtal repairs and maintenance 1,372,330 1,093,807.00

El
E
E

11

pescription
FN 22t23 FN 202U2022

Kshs Kshs

fescription
FN 22123 FN 202,/2022

Ksbs Kshs

I 3
nfscrlpdon

FN 22t23

Xshr



Yala Sub-County Hospital (Siaya County Government)
Annual Report and Financial Statemenls for The Year Ended 3Uh June 2023

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

20. Grants And Subsidies

Social beneft schemes include benefts such as cash transfers for unemployment or elderly in line with IPSAS 42

21. General Expenses

Community development and social work xxx xxx

Education initiatives and programs xxx xxx

Free/ subsidised medical camp xxx xxx

Disability programs xxx xxx

Free cancer screening xxx xxx

Social benefit expenses xxx xxx

Other grants and subsidies( spe c{.v) 4,436,86r.75 3,600,4',77.00

Total grants and subsidies 4,436,861.75 3,600,477.00

xxx xxxAdvertising and publicity expenses

Catering expenses xxx xxx

Waste management expenses xxx xxx

xxx xxxInsecticides and rodenticides

Audit fees xxx xxx

Bank charges

Conferences and delegations

xxx

xxx

xxx

xxx

Consultancy fees xxx xxx

Conracted services xxx xxx

Electricity exp€nses r,923,560.00

Fuel and Lubricants 1,284,930.00

Insurance

r,676,254

2,391,ss6

xxx xxx

Research and development expenses xxx xxx

Travel and accommodation allowance 200,000.00 7,000.00

Legal expenses xxx xxx

Licenses and permits xxx xxx

9,450.00 xxx

235.000 274.580.00

Hire charges xxx xxx

Other Fuels 435.789.00 344-6t7.OO

Waler and se\\ erage costs xxx xxx

Skills developmenl levies xxx xxx

Description
FY 22/23 FtY 202v2U22

Kshs Kshs

Description
FN 22t23 FN 2y22

Kshs Kshs

Courier and postal services

Printing and stationery



A
S u b-Co u nty H o sp ita I (S i aya Co u nty G ove rn me nt)

ual rt and Financial Statements r The Year Ended 3Ah June 2023

22. Finance Costs

ng costs that relate lo interesl expense on acquisition of non- current assets and do not

for Capitalisation as per IPSAS 5: on bonowing costs should be included under this note.)

23 Gain/Loss on Disposal of Non-Current Assets

24. Unrealized Gain On Fair Value Investments

q

r80.000.00 140.000.00Telephone and mobile phone services

Intemet expenses xxx xxx

Staff training and development 429,900.00 400.900.00

Subscriptions to professional bodies xxx xxx

3ubscriptions to newspapers periodical,
nagazines. and gazette notices

xxx xxx

xxx xxx-ibrary books/Materials

)ther Creditors 8,100,282.00 3,564,324.00

lotal General Expenses 13,658,231.00 7,939,911.00

xxxlorrowings (amortized cost) +

lank Charges I 8, l 19.00

xxxrterest on Bank overdrafts/Guarantees xxx

rterest on loans from commercial banks xxx
'otal finance costs

xxx

P operty, plant, and equipment xxx xxx
Ir tangible assets xxx xxx
C dler assets rrot capitalised (spectfi,) xxx xxx

xttxT rtal gain on sale cf assets 0.00

In ,'estments al fair value xxx xxx

xrx IX\

IItII

1i

pcscripdon
FN 22t23 FN 2u22

Kshs Kshs

a

peseription
FN 22t23 FN 2ln2

KShs KShs

xxx

8,260.00

8,260.00l8,l19.00

*O
Ilscription

FN 22n3 FN 2tn2
KShs xsb

D[!rlption
FN 2423 FN 2y22
KShr KShr

T{tal gain



Yala Sub-County Hospital (Sioya County Government)
Annual Report and Financial Statements for The Year Ended 3Ah June 2023

Comprehensive care contracts with NHIF xxx xxx

Non- Comprehensive contracts care with NHIF xxx xxx

Linda Mama Program xxx xxx

Waivers and Exemptions xxx xxx

Total Gain/Loss xxr xxx

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

25. I\ledical Services Contracts Gains /Losses

26. Impairment Loss

27. Cash And Cash Equivalents

Current accounts

(The amount should agree v.,lth the closing and opening balances as included in the statement
of cash flows)

a

Property, plant, and equipment xxx xxx
Intangible assets xxx xxx
Total impairment loss XII xxx

8,2r 7,063.00 8,910,155.00

On - call deposits xxx xxx

xxxFixed deposits accounts

Cash in hand xxx xxx
Others(s pecifii)- Mobile money xxx xxx
Total cash and cash equivalents 8,217,063.00 8,910,t55.00

1<

Description
FN 22t23 FN 2u22

KShs KShs

Description
FN 22/23 Insert Comperative FY

KShs KShs

I
Descrlpdon

FN 22n3
KSbr

xxx



o Su b-C o u nty H ospital (S iay a Co u n ly G ove rn m e nt)
A ual Report and Financial Statementsfor The Year Ended 3Ah June 2023

28. ivables From Exchange Transactions

(Enti
' lo stut(, th( cxpectad o'edil loss ralcs.lin' turiou.s ('ut?gorias ofil.s raceivtblt s. The cntii' should

closc lrov ECL vus arrivcl ul in line wilh prot i.sirnts ol lPS,,IS 11.)

Current account

3,861,974.00 2,554,280.00( )ooperative Bank 01141740944401

( )ooperative Bank 01l4t'140944400 r ,806,321 .00 276.960.00

( )ooperative Bank 01141s1'7779600 2,548,768.00 6,078,915.00

Sub- total 8,2 r 7,063.00 8,910,155.00

h On - call deposits

xxx xxxKenya Commercial bank

xxx xxxEquity Bank - etc

xxxSub- total xxx

c) Fixed deposits account

xxxBank Name

Sub- total xxx xxx

xxx xxxd) Others(specify)

cash in hand xxx

xxxMobile money- Mpesa,
Airtel money

xxx

xxx xxxSub- total

8,217,063.00Grand total

4,020,060.00cal services receivablesIM 8,152,020.00

t receivablesR r.000.00

xxxexchange debtorso
xxx xxx: impairment allowanceL

,1.020.060.(Xlrtl reccivables 8.153.020.00

ItII
III

II

IIIII

trtr
@
EE

'lA

I

{otes 
to the Financial Statements (Continued)

z| 1";. o"trit.d Analvsis of Cash and Cash Equivalents

pescription

Financial institution

FtY 22t23 FtY 202y2022
Account numbcr KShs KShs

xxx

xxx

8,910,155.00

Ddpription
FN 22t.23 FN 2tn2

KShs

xxx

xxx



Yala Sub-County Hospital (Siaya County Government)
Annual Report and Financial Statements for The Year Ended 3Oh June 2023

Current
FY

'h of
the

total

Comparative
FY

"/" of
the total

Less than I year xxx o/o xxx o//o

Between l- 2 years xxx % xxx %

Between 2-3 vears xxx o//o xxx o/o

Over 3 years xxx % xxx o//o

Total (a+b) xxx o//o lrixx o//o

A s of Receivables From Exchan Transactions

29. Receivables From Non-ExchangeTransactions

Total
(Undisbursed donor funds refer to funds expected where conditions for disbursements have been met
by the recipient as at the reporting date)

Anal of Receivables From Non-Excha Transactions

t

Transfers from the County Government xxx xxx

Undisbursed donor funds xxx xxx

Other debtors (non-exchange tansoctions) xxx xxx

Less: impairment allowance (xxx) (xxx)

xrx xrx

Current
FY

o/o of
the totsl

Comparative
FY

7o of the
total

Less than I year xxx % xxx o/

Between 1- 2 years xxx Ot

Between 2-3 vears xxx /o

xxx o/

xxx o//o

Over 3 years xxx o/ xxx %

Total (a+b) xrx XII /o

11

FN 22/23 FN 2t/22
Description

Kshs l(:hs

Descrlption
FN 22123 FN 2t/22

KShs KShs

FN 2AZZ
Dcrcrlgdor

FN 2v22
KrhrXr\



Sub-County Hospital (Siayo Counly Government)
A ual Re and Financial Statements or The Year Ended 30h June 2023

30 Inventories

Pharmaceutical supplies 3,811,r00.00 6.365.690.00

lon Pharmaceuticals 0.00 975.3 r 0.00

iood supplies 186,000.00 2l 8.806.00

,aboratory Commodities 0.00

I ieneral supplies 5',79,625.00 0.00

l ,ess: provision for impairment of stocks 0.00 0.00

lotal 4,576,125.00 8,249,806.00

I
I
I

1e

Pescription
FN 22t23 Inserf Comparatite f'l

KShs I(Shs

690,000.00

pleaning materials supplies 0.00 0.00



Yala Sub-County Hospital (Siaya County Government)
Annual Report and Financial Statementsfor The Year Ended 3Oh June 2023

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

31. Property, Plant and Equipment

Cost

xrx xxx xf,x xxx xxx xxx xrxAt I July 20XX (previous year) \\\
Additions xxx xxx xxx xxx \\T
Disposals (xxx) (xxx) (xxx) (xxx) (xxx) (xxx) (xxx) (xxx)

Trans lers/adj ustments xxx xxx (xxx) xxx xrx (xxx)

At 30th Jun 20XX X\I xxx rxx xxx xxx XII I\Ixxx

xxx xxx xxx xxx xxx xxx xxx \\\
Additions xxx xxx xxx xxx xxx xxx X\Ixxx

(xxx) (xxx) (xxx) (xxx)Disposals (xxx) (xxx) (xxx) (xr r)
Trans [erladj ustments xxx xxx (xxx)

At 30tt'Jun 20XX xrx xxx xxx xxx xxx xxx xrx \\\
Deprcciation and impairment

At I July 20XX (previous year) xxx xxx xxx xxx xxx \\I

Depreciation for the year xxx xxx ).'ix xxx xxx \\\
(xxx) (xxx) (xxx) (xxx) (xxx) (xxx)

(xxx) (xxx) (xxx) (xxx) (xxx) (xrx)

At 30 Junc 20XX xxx xxx xxx xxx I\\

III
I

I

39

Description
Land Buildings

rnd Civil
wmks

ivlotor
vehiclcr

Furrltrrc,
fttingg rnd

ofF ;
c

t rcl

ICT
Eqrhmt

Plant and
medical

equipm€nt

Crpltal
Work in
pnogress

I rrt,. -

Ksh Ksh IGT Ksh Ksh K>h

xxx

At I July 20XX (current year)

Disposals

Impaimrent

xxx
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Yala Sub-County Hospital (Siaya County Government)
Annual Report and Financial Statementsfor The Year Ended 3Ah June 2023

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

32. Intangible Assets-Sofhvare

33. lnvestmentProperty

At end of the year

t

Cost

xxx xxx
Additions xxx xxx
Additions-Internal development xxx
Disposal (xxx) (xxx)

At end of the year xxx xxx

Amortization and impairment

At beginning of the year xxx xxx
Amortization for the period xxx xxx
Impairment loss xxx xxx

At end of the year xxx xxx
NBV xxx xxx

I

At beginning of the year xxx xxx

xxx xxxAd.litions

Disptrsals during the year (xxx) (xxx)
Fair value gain xxx xxx
Depreciation (where investment property is at cost) (xxx) (xxx)

Impairment (xxx) (xxx)

xxx xrx

4t

Description
Fh'22123 Fn'2U22

KShs I(Shs

At beginning of the year

xxx

Dercripdon I xsns

(For investmenl property held at fair value, changes in _fair value should go through the statement of
financial performance. Were cost model is elected, deprecation and impairment should not be charged.
Investment measured at fair value should be evaluated at the end of the reporting period for changes in

.fair value.). Entity should disclose the independent valuers, renlal incomefrom the investment ploperty
if any and the direct costs attributed to the investment property. Any charges on the investment property
as well as any dilficulty in classifiing this asset as an investment proper6,-.



Sub-Counly Hospital (Siaya County Government)
A ual Rc rt and Financial Statements r The Year Ended 30h June 2023

otes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

Trade and other Pavables

Refundable Deposits from Customers/Patients

lrade payables 8,100,282.00 3,564,324.00

imployee dues xxx xxx
I'hird-party payments (e. g. unremitted payroll
leductions)

xxx xxx

\udit fee xxx xxx

xxx xxx

8,100.282.00 3,564,324.00

\geing analvsis:
Current

FY

"/o ol
the

Total

Compa
rative

FY

oh of
the

total
I Jnder one vear

O//o xxx %

-2 years xxx O//o xxx %

-3 years xxx % xxx o//o

er 3 years xxx o//o xxx o/o

xxx o//o xxx o//o

I\ ledical fees paid in advance xxx
( redit facility deposit

xxx

xxx xxx

F ent deposits xxx xxx

C lhers (specifi) xxx xxx

T otal deposits xxx xxx

A geing analvsis: Current FY

oh of
the

Total Comparative FY

oh of
the

Total
U nder one year xxx % O//o

I 2 years xxx % xxx %

2 3 years xxx o//o xxx %

o rer 3 years xxx % xxx %

xl{ x /o

I
I

a

42

pcscription
FN 22t23 FN 21t22

l(Shs KShs

Doctors'fee

fotal trade and other payables

xxx

Total

Ifpcriptiou u Inscrt Current FY
XShr

Insert Comparedyc Fl

xxx

Tbral
o//o xx\



Yala Sub-County Hospital (Siaya Counly Government)
Annual Report and Financial Statements for The Year Ended 3Uh June 2023

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

36. Provisions

37. Finance Lease Obligation

38. Deferred Income

xxx xxx xxxBalance at the beginning of the year xxx
xxxAdditional Provisions xxx xxx xxx

(xxx) (xxx)Provision utilised (xxx) (xxx)
Change due to discount & time value for money (xxx) (xxx) (xxx) (xxx)
Total provisions xxx xxx xxr xxx

Current Provisions xxx xxx xxx xxx
Non-Current Provisions xxx xxx xxx

xxx xxx xxxTotal Provisions xxx

IIII

Kshs Kshs

Current Lease obligation xxx xxx
Long term lease obligation xxx xxx

Xxx xxrTotal

Current Portion xxx xxx

xxx xxxNon-Current Portion

xxxxxx

t

43

Description
Lerve

orovlslon
Bonuc

orovlslon
orher

provirlon Total
KShs KShs I(Shs KShs

xxx

Dercriptlon
FN2 FN 2tn2

Total

Description FN 22123 FN 2y22



t

Su b-Cou nty Hospital (Siaya County Gove rnment)
A ual Re rt and Financial Statements

otes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

(a) The deferred inconre movement is as follorvs

. Borrowings

3 (a) Breakdown ofLong- and Short-Term Borrowings

r The Year Ended 3Ah June 2023

xxx xxxBalance b/f xxx xxx

xxx xxx xxx xxx{dditions during the year

(xxx) (xxx) (xxx)
(xx
x)lransfers to Capital fund

(xxx) (xxx)
(xx
x)

lransfers to statement of
inancial performance

(xxx)

(xxx) (xxx) (xxx)
(xx
x))ther transfers (Sp e c {y)

rxxlalance C/F xxx xxx xxx

lalance at beginning of the period xxx

xxx xxxixtemal borrowings during the year

xxx xxx)(omestic borrowings during the year

i.epaymentb 0f external borrowings during the year (xxx) (xxx)

(xxx) (xxx)Lepayments of domestic borrowings during the
ear

xxxialance at end of the period xxx

xxx xxx( urrent Obligation

t, on-Current Obligation xxx

II\ xxx1 otal

I
I
I

I
III
II

44
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Description
Netional

governmcnt
International

funderV donors

Public
contrlbu

tions
end

donotion
s

Tot
el

F/Y
22t23crcriptlon
KSbr

XXr-

xsLl

FN
22t23

FN 2ln2
Iflscription

KShs

xxx
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Yala Sub-County Hospitol (Siaya County Government)
Annual Report and Flnangial Statementstor The Year Ended 3Ah June 2023

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

40. Service Concession Arrangements

41. Social Benefit Liabilities

Fair value of service concession assets recognized under PPE xxx xxx

Accumulated depreciation to date (xxx) xxx

Net carrying amount rxx xxx
Service concession liability at beginning of the year xxx xxx
Service concession revenue recognized (xxx) (xxx)
Service concession liability at end of the year xxx xxx

Health social benefit scheme xxx xxx
Unemployment social benefit scheme xxx xxx
Orphaned and vulnerable benefit scheme xxx xxx

People Living with Disabilities benefit
Scheme xxx xxx

Elderly social benefit scheme xxx

Bursary social benefits xxx xxx

xxx

Total xxx xxx

Current social bener-rts xxx xxx
Non- current social benefits xxx

Total (tie to totals above) xxx xxx

45

Description
FN 22t23 FN 2y22

KShs Xlf,!

Descriptlon
FN 22t73 FN 2u22

Kshs Kshs

xxx

t
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S u b-Co u nty H o sp ita I (S ioy o Co u n ty G ove nr me n t)
rt and Financial Statements or The Year Ended 3Ah Junc 2023A olR

otes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

. Cash Generated from Operations

Surplus for the year before tax 2.563,523.00 ( r 08,4r 2.00)
Adjusted for:
Depreciation xxx xxx
Von-cash grants received (xxx) (xxx)
.mpairment xxx xxx
Sains and losses on disposal of assets (xxx ) (xxx)
lontribution to provisions xxx xxx
lontribution to impairment allowance xxx xxx
Working Capital adjustments
ncrease ln lnventory (xxx) (xxx)
ncrease in receivables (xxx) (xxx)

Dcrease in deferred income xxx xxx
ncrease in payables xxx xxx
ncrease in payments received in advance xxx
{et cash flow from operating activities 2.563,523.00 (t08,412.00)

46

pescription FN 22t23 FN 2tn2
KShs KShs

xxx



t

Yala Sub-County Hospital (Siaya County Government)
Annual Report and Financial Statementsfor The Year Ended 3Uh June 2023

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

43. Financial Risk Management

The entity's activities expose it to a variety offinancial risks including credit and liquidity risks

and effects of changes in foreign currency. The company's overall risk management

programme focuses on the unpredictability of changes in the business environment and seeks

to minimise the potential adverse effect of such risks on its performance by sefting acceptable

levels of risk. The company does not hedge any risks and has in place policies to ensure that

credit is only extended to customers with an established credit history.

The entity's financial risk management objectives and policies are detailed below:
(D Credit risk

The entity has exposure to credit risk, which is the risk that a counterparty will be unable to
pay amounts in full when due. Credit risk arises from cash and cash equivalents, and deposits

with banks, as well as trade and other receivables and available-for-sale hnancial invesEnents.

Management assesses the credit quality of each customer, taking into account its financial
position, past experience and other factors. Individual risk limits are set based on internal or
extemal assessment in accordance with limits set by the directors. The amounts presented in
the statement of financial position are net of allowances for doubtful receivables, estimated by
the company's management based on prior experience and their assessment of the current

economic environment. The carryirrg amount of financial assets recorded in the financial
statements representing the entity's maximum exposure to credit risk without taking account

of the value of any collateral obtained is made up as follows:

(NB: The totuls column should tic to the individual elements ofcredit risk disclosed in the enti\"s
stu temot l o/.fi nonciul pos i liott )

t

At 30 June 20XX (previous year)

xxx
xxx

Receivables from -non-exchange
transactions

xxx

xxx xS]tt

xxx xxx

Bank balances xxx xxx xxx xxx

Total xxx xxx xxx xxx

At 30 June 20XX (current year)

Receivables from exchange transactions xxx xxx xxx xxx

xxx xxx xxx xxx

Bank balances xxx xxx xxx xxx

Total XII IXI III \IX

II

II

I E
Decriptior

Totrl
!murl

Fdty
pcrfoml4 Pest due I Inprirea

Kshs Ksbs

Receivables from exchange transactions

xxx

Receivables from -non-exchange
transactions

47
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Su b-County H ospital (Siaya County G ove rnm ent)
A alR rt and Financiol Statcments or The Year Ended 30th June 2023

otes to the Financial Statenrents (Continrred)

customers under the fully performing category are paying their debts as they continue

g. The credit risk associated with these receivables is minimal and the allowance for
llectible amounts that the company has recognised in the financial statements is considered

uate to cover any potentially irrecoverable amounts. The entity has significant

entration of credit risk on amounts due from xxxx The board of management sets the

mpany's credit policies and objectives and lays down parameters within which the various

ts of credit risk management are operated

Liquidity risk management

te responsibility for liquidity risk management rests with the hospital's board of
agement who have built an appropriate liquidity risk management framework for the

gement of the entity's short, medium and long-term funding and liquidity management

uirements. The entity manages liquidity risk through continuous monitoring of forecasts and

cash flows

table below represents cash flows payable by the company under non-derivative financial

li ities by their remaining contractual marurities at the reporting date. The amounts disclosed

ln table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows. Balances due within 12 months equal

carrying balances, as the impact of discounting is not significant

(

A
xxxTl

30 June 20xx
pde payables xxx xxx

xxxCr rTent portion of borrowings xxx xxx xxx

Pn )vtstons xxx xxx xxx xxx

xxx xxx xxx xxxDe

xxx xxxEn rployee benefit obligation

ferred income

xxx

lal xxx xxx xxxTo

At 30 June 20xx

xxxTrt de payables xxx xxx

xxxt portion of borrowingsC xxx xxx xxx

xxx xxx xxx xxxlons

xxx xxx xxxrncomeDe xxx

oyee benefit obligationE xxx xxx xxx xxx

IIX I\I IXIIII

Total
fif,criptioo

XshtXrbrXrLr i3j-!l

()vcr 5
monthc

Lcrs thrn I
month

Bctrccr l-3
mcnlhr

xxx

xxx

xxx

xxx

Tobl
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Yala Sub-Coun$) Hospital (Siaya County Government)
Annual Report and Financial Statementsfor The Year Ended 3Uh June 2023

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

(iii) I\larket risk

The hospital has put in place an internal audit function to assist it in assessing the risk faced by
the entity on an ongoing basis, evaluate and test the design and effectiveness of its internal
accounting and operational controls. Market risk is the risk arising from changes in market
prices, such as interest rate, equity prices and foreign exchange rates which will affect the

entity's income or the value of its holding of financial instruments. The objective of market
risk management is to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters,

while optimising the retum. Overall responsibility for managing market risk rests with the

Audit and Risk Management Committee.

The company's Finance Department is responsible for the development of detailed risk
management policies (subject to review and approval by Audit and Risk Management
Committee) and for the day-to-day implementation of those policies. There has been no change

to the entity's exposure to market risks or the way it manages and measures the risk.

a) Foreign currencl' risk

The entity has transactional currency exposures. Such exposure arises through purchases of
goods and services that are done in currencies other than the local currency. Invoices
denominated in foreign currencies are paid after 30 days from the date of the invoice and

conversion at the time of payment is done using the prevailing exchange rate. The carrying
amount of the entity's foreign crurency denominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities
at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

The entity manages foreign exchange risk from future commercial transactions and recognised
assets and liabilities by projecting expected sales proceeds and matching the same with
expected payments.

{.

Financial assets (investments. cash, debtors) xxx xxx xxx

Liabilities

Trade and other payables xxx xxx xxx

Borrowings xxx xxx xxx

Net foreign currency asse/( liabilin') xxr xxx xxx

I
I I

49

Other currercict Totr
l:i''r'l

At 30 June 20xx
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Su b-Cou nty H ospital (Siaya Counly Govern me nt)
A al Re rt ond Financial Statements r The Year Ended 3Ah June 2023

otes to the Financial Statemetrts (Continued)

F reign currency sensitivity analysis

p o

following table demonstrates the effect on the company's statement of hnancial

nnance on applying the sensitivity for a reasonable possible change in the exchange rate

t rate risk is the risk that the entity's financial condition may be adversely affected as a

o three main transaction currencies, with all other variables held constant. The reverse

d also occur if the Kenya Shilling appreciated with all other variables held constant.

b)

ln

terest rate risk

t of changes in interest rate levels. The company's interest rate risk arises from bank

ts. This exposes the company to cash flow interest rate risk. The interest rate risk

ex arises mainly from interest rate movements on the company's deposits

Nla ement of interest rate risk

To ge the interest rate risk, management has endeavoured to bank with institutions that

o favourable interest rates

tt 30 June 20xx
xxxxxx xxx:inancial assets (investments, cash, debtors)

xxx xxxxxx'rade and other payables

xxxxxx xxx
1 lorrowings

xxx xxx xxxIet foreign currency assel (l ia bil i tv)

2t
xxx xxxLro lOYoEr

10%U ;D xxx
XX (current year)21

xxx100h xxxEt ro
10% xxxU! D

50

Olher currencies Total

Kshs Kshs

Liabilities

Effect on Profit
beforc trr

Effect on
uiW

rel'

xxx
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Yola Sub-County Hospital (Siaya County Government)
Annual Report and Financial Statements for The Year Ended 3Ah June 2023

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The entity analyses its interest rate exposure on a dynamic basis by conducting a sensitivity
analysis. This involves determining the impact on profit or loss of defmed rate shifts. The
sensitivity analysis for interest rate risk assumes that all other variables, in particular foreign
exchange rates, remain constant. The analysis has been perfbrmed on the same basis as the

prior year.

Using the end of the year figures, the sensitivity analysis indicates the impact on the statement

of financial performance if current floating interest rates increase/decrease by one percentage

point as a decrease/increase ofKShs xxx (20xx: KShs xxx). A rate increase/decrease of 5%

would result in a decrease/increase in surplus of KShs xxx (20xx - KShs xxx).

iv) Capital Risk Management
The objective of the entity's capital risk management is to safeguard the Hospital's ability

to continue as a going concem. The entity capital structure comprises of the following

funds:

Revaluation reserve xxx xxx

Retained eamings xxx xxx

Capital reserve xxx xxx

Total funds xxx xxx

Total borrowings xxx xxx

Less: cash and bank balances (xxx) (xxx)

Net debt/ (excess cash and cash equivalents) xxx

Gearing xxYo xxoh

5l

Descrlpdon
Currcnt
Fcrlod

Conprredve
Porlod

Kshs Xshs

xxx
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Su b-County Hospital (Sioya County G overnment)
A ual R rt and Financial Statements r The Year Ertdcd 3Uh June 2023

otes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

Related Partv Balances

ature of related party relationships

tities and other parties related to the entity include those parties who have the ability to

ercise control or exercise significant influence over its operating and financial decisions

ted parties include management personnel, their associates, and close family mernbers

County Government is the principal shareholder of the entit-, holding 100% of the enrir-'s equity

ln t. The National Government of Kanya has provided full guarantees to all long-term lenders of the

both domestic and external. The related parties include:

i) The National Government;

ii) The County Govemment;

iii) Board of Directors;

iv) Key Management

ty,

Tn rnsactions with related parties

a) rvices offered to related parties

eruces to xxx xxx xxx

ales of services to xxx xxx xxx

fotal xxx

b) ]rants from the Government

xxx xxx
( irants from the National Govemment Entities xxx xxx

xxx
'l otal XI\

c)E rpenses incurred on behalf of related part),

Pi lyments of salaries and wages for xxx ernployees xxx xxx

xxx xxx

1i rtal \ I\ xxr

d) K ) nranagernenl c0mpcrrsalion

52

I tN 22t23
lDtr

xxx

firants from County Government

Oonations in kind xxx

xxx

Pfyments for goods and services for xxx



xxx xxxDirec(ors' emoluments

Compensation to the medical Sup xxx xxx

Compensation to key management xxx xxx

Total xxx xxt

It

Yala Sub-County Hospital (Siayo County Government)
Ann ual rl and Finoncial Statcmenls r The Year Ended 3Ah June 2023

45. Segmentlnformation

(Were an organtsation operates in dilferent geographical regions or in departments, IPSAS 18

on segmental reporting requires an entity to present segmental information of each geographic
region or department to enable wers undersland the entity's performance and allocation o.f
resources to dillerent segments)

(Give details)

47. CapitalCommitments

(NB: Capilal commitments are commitmenls to be carried out in the next financial year and are
disclosed in accordance with IPSAS 17. Capital commitments may be those that have been authorised
by the board but at the end of the year had not been contracted or those already contracted for and
ongoing)

48. Events after the Reporting Pcriod

There were no material adjusting and non- adjusting events after the reporting period-

Court caie xxx against the company xxx xxx

xxx xxxBank guarantees in favour of subsidiary

Total xxx rxx

Kshs Kshs
Authorised For xxx xxx
Authorised And Contracted For xxx xxx

Total xxx xxx

53

FN 22t23 FN 2v22
Derrlptlor

Kshs Kshs

46. ContingentLiabilities

Crpltel Comnitmentr FN 22n3 FN 2u22

t

FN 22t23 FN 2U22

X!h
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A
nA Hospital (Siaya County Government)

and Fi na n ci a I Stateme nts The Year Ended 3Ah June 2023

Ultimate and Holding Entitv

ty is a State Corporation/ or a Semi- Autonomous Government Agency under the

of Health. Its ultimate parent is the County Covernment of Siaya.

Currency
financial statements are presented in Kenya Shillings (Kshs) and all values are rounded off

nearest shilling

19.

to

54
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Yala Sub-CounU Hospilol (Siayt Countl, Government)
Annual Report and Financial Statements for The Year Ended 3Ah June 2023

The following is the summary of issues raised by the extemal auditor, and management
comments that were provided to the auditor. We have nominated focal persons to resolve the
various issues as shown below with the associated time frame within which we expect the
issues to be resolved.

Guidance Notes:

(D Use the same reference numbers as contained in the external audit report.

(ii) Obtain the "Issue/Observation" and "management comments", requted above, from the

final external audit report that is signed by Management.

(iii) Before a discuss the timeframe with the appointed Focal Point
persons en responsible the for implementation of each 'ssue

(iv) tus of "Reso " or "Not Resolved" by the date of submitting this

a

A un ofli

tignal rreas*P

ting
oq

I
55

20. Appendices

Appendix l: Progress on Follou Up of Auditor Recommcndations

Refereucc
No. on the
external

audlt Report

Status:
(Resolved /

Not
Resolved)

Timeframe:
(Put a dau
when you
exPecl the
Ltsue to be
resolved)

Issue /
Observations
from Audltor

Management
comments
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Yalo Sub-County Hospital (Siaya County Government)
Annual Rcport and Financial Statements r The Year Ended 3Uh June 2023

Projects

Projccts implemented by the Hospital Funded by development partners

Status of Projects completion

(Sunnrurise the status of project completion.at the end of each quarter, i.e. total costs incurred, stage which the projecl is etc)

I

2 I

I

2

-3

56

E*cmrhcrr Seprrete donor
reporting requircd ar
per the donor
screement (YerTtlo)

Consolidated in
tlece [hencial
statements
CYes/No)

Project Nurher D.r

t

Period/
durrtior

I

Project Cordetion 7. to
dlte

Budgel Actual Sources of firndr
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Yala Sub-County Hospital (Siaya Counly Government)
Annual Report and Financial Statements for The Year Ended 3Ah June 2023

Appendix III: Inter-Entity Confirmation Letter

II nse rt yo u r Lette rheadJ

IInsert nume of beneficiary entity]

IInsert Address]

The [insert SC/SAGA/Fund name ierd wishes to confirm the amounts disbursed to you as at 30s June 20XX as indicated in the table below.
Please compare the amounts disbursed to you with the amounts you received and popul*e the column E in the table below Please sign and stamp
this request in the space provided and return it to us.

Amounts Disbursed by [SC/SAGA/Fund] (KShs) as at 30th June 20XX

Recurrent (A) Development (B) Inter-
Ministerial (C)

Total
(D)=(A+Brc)

Amount Received
by [beneficiary
entityl
(KShs) as at 30th

June 20XX (E)

Differences
(KShs)
(F):(D-E)

Reference
Number

Date
Disbursed

Total

In conf-rrm that the amounts shown above are correct as of the date indicated

.DateSign

Head of Accounts Department of the beneficiary entity:

Nanre

-

E

-

57

Coufirrrnrtion of amounts received by llnsert name of beneficlrry cffyl r rt 3ll Jrrc 2UtrO(
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--+

Appcndix IV Reporting of Climate Relevant Expenditures

Qr Q2 Q3 Q4

58

Frojec I
i iame

PrqFct
Deccriptiou

Source Of
Funds

Implementing
Partners

Proiect Prolect
Activities

Quarter

E
t-l
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Appendix V: Disaster Expenditure Reporting Template

59

Prognrrnrne Sub-
programme

Disaster
Type

Expendinre
ircmrequ lre

(rcsponse/rcr /prcparedocss)

Amount
(Kshs.)

('trltlr,' t, i::


